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We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE
COMPANY LIMITED {the Ccmpany) as at December 31, 2015 and the related profit and loss account,
statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity, toegether
with the notes forming part thereof (here-in-after referred to as the *financial statements’) for the year
then ended, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal
contral, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting
standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Qur responsibility is to express an
apinion on these statements based on our audit.

Except for the matters discussed in para {a) below, we conducted our audit in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to cobtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
policies and significant estimates made by management, as weill as, evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinicn and,
after due verification, we report that:

a) Due to limitations of the IT system relating to advances, date of default for non-performing
advances and the date of forced sale valuations against the advances given by the IT system is
not accurate. The non-performing advances are being classified on sub-standard, doubtful and
loss cateqgories by dividing total defaulted amount with the amount of installment to calculate
overdue period instead of calculating exact overdue period from the first date of default.
Accordingly we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in respect of
completeness, classification and accuracy of the amount of non-performing advances and
related provision required in accordance with Prudential Regulations.

b) except for the matters discussed in para (a) above, in our opinion, proper books of accounts
have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

<) except for the matters discussed in para {a) above, in our opinion:

i.  the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with
the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently
applied;

ii. the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpecse of the Company's
business; and

iit, the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year
were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

d} except for the effects of adjustments, if any, required due to matters referred in para (a) above,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income,
cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 in the manner so required and
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respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31,
2015 and of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year
then ended; and

e) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).

f) we draw attention to:

- note 1 to the financial statements which states that the Company has not complied with the
minimum capital requirements stated in BSD Circular No. 19 of 2008 and BSD Circular No. 7
of 2009 dated September 5, 2008 and April 15, 2009 respectively as at the year end which
should be Rs.6 billion net of losses. The said note also discloses the events subsequent to
the reporting date relating to the decision made on conversion of borrowings (credit lines)
from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and settlement of mark-up thereon.

- note 13.5.3 to the financial statements, which states that the adoption of change in
accounting treatment for long outstanding deferred credit balances is pending for approval
from the Company’s Board of Directors and the State Bank of Pakistan.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of abovementioned matters.

Other Matter

The condensed interim financial information of the Company for the half-year ended June 30, 2014 and
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014 were reviewed and audited
respectively by another firm of chartered accountants who had expressed a qualified conclusion and
opinion thereon dated April 22, 2016, respectively on adequacy of provisioning against non-performing
advances in line with Prudential Regulations (refer para ‘a’ above), unreconciled transactions in bank
reconciliation statements, replies received for confirmations sent to banks, reversal of income due to
reprocessing adjustments, difference in balances between head office and branches relating to
advances, difference in subsidiary and GL balances of advances and accounting for deferred credit
balances and emphasis of matter paragraph on the non-compliance with the requirements of minimum
capital requirement. Except for the matter relating to adequacy of provisioning against non-performing
advances in line with Prudential Regulations and accounting for deferred credit balances, all matters
were adequately addressed in the current year. Since the matter relating to adequacy of provisioning
against non-performing advances is relevant in the current year also, we have reported it in paragraph
‘a’ above and the matter relating to accounting for deferred credit has been reported in the emphasis of
matter paragraph along with the non-compliance with the requirements of minimum capital
requirement.

Chartered Accm

Engagement Partner
Mushtaq Ali Hirani

pated:  § MAR 2017

Karachi
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014 2013
Restated Restated
Note - (Rupees in '000) =«svcomemmmmemeeee
ASSETS
(ash and batances with treasury banks 4 82,376 70,155 80,564
Ralances with other banks 5 107,638 244,608 226912
I.endings to financial institutions 6 - 2,006,302 2,439,321
Investments - net 7 7,729,999 7,145,567 8,033,214
Advances - net 8 11,512,906 10,205,586 9,592,843
Operating fixed assets 9 373,236 406,599 344,400
Deterred tax assets 10 - - -
Other assets 11 876,296 504,725 415,655
20,682,451 20,583,542 21,132,909
LIABILITIES
1311ls payable - - -
Borrowings 12 11,242,300 11,242,300 11,392,300
Deposits and other accounts - - -
Sul-ordinated loans - - -
Liabilitics against assets subject to finance lease - - -
Deferred tax Habilities - - -
Other labilities 13 10,194,912 8,163,793 8,036,975
21,437,212 19,406,093 19,429,275
NET ASSETS {754,761) 1,177,449 1,703,634
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 14 3,001,000 3,001,000 3,001,000
Reserves 713,662 713,662 713,005
Accumulated loss (4,789,697) (2,881,315) (2,221,722)
{1,075,035) 833,347 1,492,283
Advance against issue of capital 8.5 218,143 218,143 218,143
Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of assets 15 102,131 125,959 (6,792)
(754,761) 1,177,449 1,703,634
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 16

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014
Restated
Note ---—- {Rupees in '000) --—---
Rental / mark-up / return / interest income 17 2,502,980 2,644,840
Rental / mark-up / return / interest expense 18 (1,068,019 {1,073,546)
Rental / mark-up / return / interest income - net 1,434,961 1,571,294
Irovision / reversal for non-performing advances - net 8.16.1 (566,180) 174,278
Provision for diminution in value of investments - net 7.9 39,101 27,770
Provision reversed against impairment of investinent in an associate 7.8.1 35,507 -
(491,572) 202,048
Reconciliation adjustments 19 (9,562) 266
Reversal due to relief package and reprocessing adjustments 20 (22,402) (65,645)
911,425 1,707,963
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
I'ce, commission and brokerage income - -
Dividend income - -
Income from dealing in foreign currencies - -
Giain / (loss) on sale of securities 4,882 {L19)
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment classified
as held for trading - -
Olther income 21 63,578 53,608
Total non-mark-up / interest income 68,460 53,489
979,885 1,761,452
NON MARK-UP /INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 22 (1,703,525) (1,643,124)
Other provisions / write offs 23 (7,536) 19
Other charges 24 (7,303) (10,239)
Total non-mark-up / interest expenses (1,718,364) (1,653,344)
(738,479) 108,108
[Zxtra-ordinary/unusual items - -
Share of profit before taxation from associate 7.8.1 9,774 -
(1LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE ALLOCATION FOR STATE
BANK OF PAKISTAN SHARE (728,705) 108,108
State Bank of Pakistan share of profit on credit lines 13.2.1 - 47,842
{(LOS8S) /PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (728,705) 155,950
‘Taxation 25 (123,255) (152,666)
(LOSS) /PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (851,960) 3,284
Basic & diluted earnings per share - Rupees 26 (2.84) 0.01

The annexed-notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements-
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014
Restated
Note —----- (Rupees in '000) -------
(Loss) / profit afier taxation for the year (851,960) 3,284
Other comprehensive income
ltems not to be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent years
- Actuarial loss on revaluation of defined benefit plan - net 29.3.2 (1,056,422) (656,862)
Other comprehensive income transferred to equity {1,908,382) {653,578)
Components of other comprehensive income
not reflected in equity
- Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of ‘available-for-sale securities' (23,828) 132,751
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,932,210) (520,827)

The annexed notes from | to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Share capital Srt;tet:'t\(r)e? Aceulf;late‘j Total
(Rupees in '000)
Balance at January 01, 2014 - previously reported 3,001,000 713,005 (1,552,348) 2,161,657
Impact of restatement refer note 37 - - " (674,732) (674,732)
Balance as at January 01, 2014 - Restated 3,001,000 713,005 (2,227,080) 1,486,925
Comprchensive income for the year
Profit after tax for the year - - 3,284 3,284
Other comprehensive income - - {656,862) (656,862
- - (653,578) (653,578)
Transfcr to statutory reserve * - 657 (657) -
Balance at December 31, 2014 - Restated 3,001,000 713,662 (2,881,315) 833,347
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss afler tax for the year - - {851,960} (851,960)
Other comprehensive income - - (1,056,422) (1,056,422
- - (1,908,382) (1,908.382)
Transfer 10 statutory reserve * - - - .
Balance at December 31,2015 3,001,000 713,662 (4,789,697) (1,075,035)

not less than 5% of its afier tax profit shall be credited to the said reserve.

%anncxed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

* This represents reserve created under BPD circular No. 15 of 2004 which requires the Company to credit to its reserve an
amount not less than 20% of its after tax profit till such time the reserve equals the amount of paid-up capital. Thereafter, a sum
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014
Restated
Note  -—-—- (Rupees in '000) -------
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss) / profit before taxation (728,705) 155,950
Adjustments
Provision / reversal for non-performing advances - net 566,180 {174,278}
Provision for diminution in value of investments - net (39,101) (27,770)
Provision reversed against impairment of investment in an associate (35,507) -
Reconciliation adjustments 9,562 (266)
Reversal due to relief package and reprocessing adjustments 22,402 65,645
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (75) (1,013)
Depreeiation 34,885 25,664
Amortization of intangibles ' 75 294
Share of profit before taxation from an associate (9,774) -
Adjustiments in cost and depreciation 9.2 4,233 -
552,880 (111,724)
(175,825) 44,226
Decrease / (inerease) in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions 2,006,302 433,019
Advances - net (1,905,464) (614,679)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation - net) (8,021) (208,262)
92,817 (389,922)
Increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
BBorrowings - (150,000
Other liabilities 974,697 (473,677)
974,697 (623,677)
Inecome tax paid (485,855) (32,246)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 405,834 (1,001,619)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments (made) / realized - net (524,828) 1,048,168
Capital expenditure (5,830) (40,281)
Proceed from disposal of operating fixed assets 75 1,018
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activitics (530,583) 1,008,903
{Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) (124,749) 7,286
Cash and cash cquivalents at begining of the year 314,763 307,477
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 27 190,014 314,763

W;ﬁmncxed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

House Building Finance Company Limited (the Company) is an unlisted public limited company incorporated in
Pakistan on Jupe 13, 2006 under the Companies Ordinance,1984. The registered office of the Company is
situated at Finance and Trade Centre Building, Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, in the province of Sindh. Pursuant to a
vesting order SRO.I/2007 dated July 25, 2007 issued by Finance Division - Government of Pakistan effective
from January 01. 2007, the Company had taken over all assets, running business, contracts, fiabilities and
proceedings of the House Building Finance Corporation established in 1952 under the House Building Finance
Corporation Act 1952 (XVIII of 1952) by the Government of Pakistan from closing of the business on December
31, 2006, and has also changed its name from House Building Finance Corporation Limited to House Building
Finance Company Limited in 2010,

The Company is designated as a financial institution by the Federal Government and is providing financing
facilities for the construction, reconstruction, renovation and purchase of houses through a network of 46 district
oflices and 10 zonal offices throughout Pakistan including Azad Jammu and Kashmir. According to credit rating
report dated June 28, 2016 of JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited, the long term and short term ratings of
the Company are "A" and "A-2".

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 19 dated September 05, 2008 the minimum paid-up capital requirement
(Iree of losses) of the Company at December 31, 2009 and in future periods is Rs. 6 billion. The paid-up capital
of the Company (free of losses) as at December 31, 2015 is Rs. 1.79 billion - nagative. The State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) vide its letter No, BSD/BAID/65%/2145/2012 dated February 16, 2012 granted exemption to the
Company from the minimum capital requirement and Capital Adequacy Ratio till December 31, 2012 or
completion of privatization / restructuring process, whichever s later.

The Ministry of Finance (MoF), vide its letter no. F. 6(9)-IF-11/2008, dated, November 18, 2016, has advised the
Company to complete [egal and corporate formalities for conversion of accrued markup on SBP Credit lines of
Rs. 4.054 billion as of December 31, 2015 into ordinary shares of the Company. Further, vide letter no. FD-
SEC/3014/405-2016, dated, Aprif 23, 2016, which has also been advised by the MoF, vide its letter no. F. 6(9)-
IFI1/2008, dated, November 18, 2016, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)} has advised for conversion of SBP
Credit Lines of Rs. 11,242 million into redeemable preference shares carrying mark-up @ 7.5% per annum,
payable half-yearly on June 30 and December 31 each year and redeemable in ten years in one bullet payment on
December 31, 2025. However, the Company has approached the MoF for Strategic Business Plan 2017-2021
that SBP’s Credit Lines of Rs. 11,242 million should also be converted into ordinary shares.

The MoF vide its letter no. F.No.1(3) IF-11/2016-1122, dated, January 09, 2017 has approved the conversion of
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) credit lines of Rs. 11,242 million along with outstanding mark-up into ordinary
shares as proposed by SBP vide letter no. FD-SEC/405-2016, dated, April 22, 2016. However, the final
approval from the stakeholders is pending,

In view of the above, the shortfall against minimum capital requirement is temporary and the Company will be in
compliance with the minimum capital requirement.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) and the directives issued
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2.2

by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) including
BSD Circular No. 04 dated February 17, 2006. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as
are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of the directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and directives issued by SBP shall prevail.

The SBP through its BSD Circular Letter no. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and
International Accounting Standard (1AS) 40, 'Investment Property’ till further instructions. Further, according to
the notification of SECP dated April 28, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS}) 7, "Financial
Instruments: Disclosures" has not been made applicable for companies engaged in housing finance services.
Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial
statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements
prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards not yet effective

The following standards, interpretations and amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial

Standards/Interpretations/Amendments Effective date (accounting
period beginning on or after)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure initiative
(Amendments) January i, 2010

TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortization (Amendments) January 1, 2016

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - Equity methed
in separate financial statements {Amendments) January 1, 2016

1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures -
Sale or contribution of assefs between an investor and

its associate or joint venture (Amendments) January 1, 2016

1AS 38 Intangibles - Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortization (Amendments) January 1, 2016

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Sale or contributien of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture (Amendment January 1, 2016

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint operations (Amendments) January 1, 2016

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of 1ASs and [FRSs.

The Companys' management expects that the adoption of above amendments will not materially affect its
financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Further, the following new standard has been issued by the IASB, but has not yet been notified by the SECP for
application in

Standards/Interpretations/Amendments

[FRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 9 Financiai Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective
during the year

New standards relevant to the Comparny
- IAS 19 (Amendments) - Employee Benefits: Employee contributions

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for contributions made by employces or third
partics that are linked to services to defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent
on the number of years of service provided by the employee.

tor contributions that are independent of the number of years of service, the entity may cither recognize the
contribution as a reduction of the service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered, or to
aliribute them to the employees’ periods of service either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straighl
line basis; whereas for contributions that are dependent on the number of years of service, the enlity s required
to allribute them to the employees” periods of service. Retrospective application is required.

- IAS 28 (Revised 2011} — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Similar to the previous Standard, the new Standard deals with how to apply the equity method of accounting,
However, the scope of the revised Standard has been changed so that it covers investments in joinl venlures as
well because 1IFRS 11 requires investments in joint ventures to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting,

- RS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

[FRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, IFRS 13 does not change the requirements regarding which items should be measured or
disclosed at fair value. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. JFRS 13 gives a new definition of fair valuc
for financial reporting purposes. Fair value under IFRS 13 is defined as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market condition (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
dircctly observable or estimated vsing another valuation technique.

New standards and amendments not relevant to the Company

The foliowing are some other new standards and amendments including certain annual improvements to several
IFRS, effective for the year ended December 31, 2015. These new standards and amendments are not relevant to
the Company's operations. ‘
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Effective date (accounting period

Standards/Interpretations/Amendments L
beginning on or after)

- TAS 27 (Revised 2011) — Separate Financial Statements { January 2015
- TAS 28 (Revised 2011)— Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2015
- IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2015
- IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements 1 January 2015
- IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2015

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments
classified as held for trading and available-for-sale are measured at fair values, excluding investment in associate

which is carried using equity method and staff retirement benefit schemes that are stated at the present value of
the obligation.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of its
accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimales. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimades are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The arcas where various assumptions and estimates were significant to the Company’s financial statements or
where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

a. Classification of investments
Held-for-trading

In classifying investments as "held-for-trading” the Company has determined securities which are acquired wilh
the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements.

Held-to-maturity

In classilying investments as "held-to-maturity” the Company follows the guidance provided in SBP circulars on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and having fixed maturity. In
making this judgment, the Company evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity.

Available-for-sale

The investments which are not classified as "held for trading" or "held to maturity” are classified as "available
for sate".

b, Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Company determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health
of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash
flows.
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¢. Provision against non-performing advances and debt securities classified as investments

The Company regularly reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities classified as investments to assess the
amount of non-performing loans and advances and debt securities and provision required there-against. While
assessing this requitement various factors including the delinguency in the account, financial position of the
borrower, the forced sale value of securities and requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

For portfolio tmpairment provision on consumer advances, the Company follows the general provision
requirement set out in Prudential Regulations.

d. Employees retirement benefit plans

The liabilities for employees retirement benefits are determined as per actuarial advice using the Projected Unit

Credit Method. The actuarial advice involves assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on
assets, future salary increases and future pension increases as disclosed in note 29. Changes in these assumptions
in future years may affect the liability / asset under these plans in future years.

¢. Operating asscts, depreciation and amortization and residual value

Eatimates wilh respect to residual values, useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the
analyais of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible
fmpairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of
respective tern of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charged and
impairment,

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. The financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Bank balances

Clash and cash equivalents

[t is carried in the balance sheet at cost and for the purpose of cash flow statement, it consist of cash in hand and
balances with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and other banks in current and deposit accounts.

Cash in transit

Collection in transit as on the reporting date received from the borrowers / partners at the branches is treated as
cash in transit and included in the bank balances.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions

The Company enters into transactions of borrowings (repos) from and lending (reverse repos) to financial
institutions at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are recorded as under:




Sale under repurchase obligations

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial pesition and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for
investment securities. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is included in
borrowings from financial institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-
up/return/interest expense and is accrued over the term of the related repo agreement,

Purchase under resale obligations

Sceurities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are not
recognized in the statement of financial position, as the Company does not obtain control over the securities.
Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings to financial institutions. The difference between
purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up/return/interest income and is accrued over the term of the related
reverse renpo agreement.,

Other lendings

Other lendings include term lendings and unsecured lendings to financial institutions. These are stated net of
provision. Mark-up on such lendings is charged to profit and loss account on time proportionate basis using
effective interest rate method except for mark-up on impaired/delinquent lendings, which are recognized on
receipl basts,

Other borrowings

These are recorded at the proceeds received. Mark-up on such borrowings is charged to the profit and toss
account on time proportion basis using effective interest method.

1. Revenue recognition

~ Rentals / markup / return on regular advances and investments is recognized on time proportion basis. Mark
up / return on classified advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis.

- Additionally under Ghar Aasan Scheme, income is recognized on the basis of share in rental income and share
in appreciation in value of property.

- Inlerest on housing finance under interest bearing scheme is not recognized since July, 2000 pursuant to the

I clecision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.
- Income from sale of housing projects is recognized using stage of completion of contract.
l ~ Income on deposits and investments other than equity instruments is recognized on accrual basis.
-~ Dividend income, except for dividend on investment in associate accounted for under equity method, is
recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
! - Gain and loss on sale of investments are recognized in the profit and loss account.
! 3.4 Advances
Housing finance advance
! Advances are stated net of general and specific provisions. The general and specific provisions are made in

accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations and other directives issued by the State Bank of
*nkistan (SBP) and are charged to the profit and loss account.

l Ot}/ }
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Non-performing advances are written off only when all possible courses of action to achieve recovery have
proved unsuccessful. The Company determines write-offs in accordance with the criteria prescribed by the SBP.

Investments

Investments of the Company, other than investment in associate, are classified as held for trading, held-to-
malurily and available for sale.

Inifial measurenent

All “regular way” purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
investments that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

nvestments are initially recognized at fair value ,which in the case of investments other than held-for-trading,
inclugles transaction costs associated with the investments.

Subscquent measurement
(et} Held-for-trading

These are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and losses on re-measurement are included
in the proflit and loss account.

(h} Held-to-maturity

These are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss
recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts.

te) Available-for-sale

Quoted-securities classified as available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair
vatue. Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept in a separate account as shown in the statement of {financial
position below equity and charged to the profit and loss account when actually realized upon disposal or when
the investment is considered to be impaired.

Unquoted eaguity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. A decline in the carrying value is
charged to the profit and loss account. The break-up value of these equity securities is calculated with reference
lo the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in
other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses.

Provision for diminution in the value of securities (except term finance certificates and sukuks) is made for
impairment, if any. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance certificates is made as per the aging
criteria prescribed by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP,

() Investment in associate

Investment in associate, where the company has significant influence, is accounted for using equity method of
accounting wherein the Company's share of underlying net assets of the investee company is recognized as the
carrying amount of such investment. Differences between the amount previously recognized and the amount
calculated at each year end is recognized in the profit and loss account as share of profit or loss of associate. Any
distribution received out of such profits is credited to the carrying amount of investment in associated
undertaking.
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3.6

Gains and losses on disposal of investments are dealt with through the profit and loss account in the year in
which they arise.

The carrying values of investments are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Where any such
indications exist that the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, provision for impairment is
made through the proftt and loss account,

Operating fixed assets
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost iess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Cost of
property and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. When parts of
an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property and equipment.

Depreciation on property and equipment is charged to income using the 'Straight Line Method' over the useful
lile of the asset at the rates mentioned in note 9.2. The residual valves, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Depreciation charge commences from the
month when the asset is available for use and continues till the month the asset is discontinued either through
clisposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoctated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Ali other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss
account when incurred.

Any pain or loss on disposal of the assets is included in the profit and loss account in the year of disposal.

frtangibles

Intangible assets having finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and itmpairment losses,
if any. Intangible assets comprise of cost of computer software and patents, which are amortized using the
'Straight Line Method' over their useful lives as stated in note 9.3.1 Amortization is charged from the month of
acquisition and up to the month of deletion. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted,
il appropriate. at each reporting date,

Costs associated with maintaining computer soflware are recognized as an expense when incurred.
Clapital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date and represents expenditure
incurred on property and equipment in the course of construction / development. These expenditure are
transferred to relevant category of property and equipment as and when the assets become available for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If such indication exists,
and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use,
The resultine impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account.




A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
lor the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account.

3.7 Taxation

tncome tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and

loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Clurrent

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of tax after taking into account
applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The charge for current tax also includes
acdjustments, where considered necessary, relating to prior years arising from assessments made during the year,

Dreferred

Delerred tax is recognized using the liability method on all temporary differences, at the reporting date between
the tax base ol assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the differences are expected to reverse, based on the
Lk rdes that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all taxable tempofary differences. Deferred tax assets is
recopnized Lo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
he utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that if
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow whole or part of the asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax is charped or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged
to ceuily, if any, in that case it is included in equity.

A8 Fmployee benefits
! a. Defined henefit plan
i ension Fund
The Company operates an approved funded pension scheme for all its employees who have been in full time

employment for at least 1Q years. The scheme provides pension based on the employees’ last drawn pensionable
salary. Contributions are made to the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendation.

The Company provides post retirement medical facility to an employee in the following events:

Retirement
Death/disability during or after service
- Early retirement from service

E 'ost retivement medical benefits




The Company's post retirement medical benefits' structure is as foliows:

Executives / officers their spouse and dependent children Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test etc. One gross pension

- for cost of medicine One gross pension
Clerical staff Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test etc. One gross pension

- for cost ol medicine Two gross pension
Non-clerical staff Entitlemcent

- Tor hospitalization One and half gross pension
- [or consultation/pathological test etc, One and half gross pension
« for cost of medicine Three gross pension

The actuartal gains / losses on re-measurement of defined benefit obligations are recognized in the other
camprehensive income,

b Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates an approved non-contributory Provident Fund scheme for all ils employees,
Conlributions are made to the Fund by the employees at the rate of 12% of their basic salaries in accordance
with the Fund’s rules.

¢. Employees’ compensated absences

Employees of the Company are entitled to carry forward and accumulate their unveiied leaves. The rules of e
lcave encashment scheme state that the employee shall be entitled to get 50% of his balance subject to maximumnm
of 180 days i.e. he is allowed to accumulate his balance upto 365 days. The employees can avail their leave
balance in excess of 365 days at any time as the excess balance will not be encased at retiremenl and will be
lapsed. The Company provides for employees compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation in
accordance with the requirements of FAS-19. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the
latest valuation was carried out at December 31, 2015.

i Accounting policy - defined benefit plan

Acluarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the periods in which they
occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account are limited to current and past service costs, gains or
losses on seltfements, and net interest income (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit obligation
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit and loss
account.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Monctary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into Rupees at the applicable rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Pakistani Rupee
applying the exchange rate at the date of respective transactions. Gains and losses on translation are included in
profit and loss account currently.
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Financial instruments
Financial assetls and liabilities

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, fending's to
financial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, borrowings from financial institutions, deposits
and certain other liabilities. The particular recognition methods adopted for signiticant financial assets and
financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with them. Financial assets are de-
recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is transferred along with the
risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is
recognized in the profit and loss account of the current period.

Off selling

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to
witle ona net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the [iabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items
ot stich assets and labilities are also off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
i probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the

amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusied 1o reflect the current
hest estimate. '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specilic to a significant addition of a project during its construction / erection period is
apitatized. Other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss, as the case may be, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
clleels of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividends and appropriation to reserves

Drividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the year in which these are approved, except
appropriations required by the law, which are recorded in the period to which they pertain.

Demand eharges

Premand charpes (penalties} on late payment by the partners are credited to 'Deferred Credit’ account. This
amount is utilized for charity purposes after netting of recovery charges as approved by the Board.
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6.1.1

2015 2014

Note - (Rupees in ‘000) -~-----
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
State Bank of Palkistan
ocal cirrency eurrent account 4.1 82,290 70,062
National Bank of Pakistan
Local currency deposit account 4.2 86 93
82,376 70,155

This represents the amount required to be maintained by the Company in accordance with the SBP's regulations.

Thig bank account carry mark-up at rate 4% (2014 4.5%) per annum.,

BALANCES WI'TH OTHER BANKS

Local currency deposit accounts 5.1 107,638 244,608

These hank accounts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 4% to 6% (2014: 6% to 9.25%) per annum.

2015 20144
Note we-enm- {(Rupeces in ‘000) ~--

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

{.etlers of placement 6.1 - -
Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo) 6.2 - 2,006,302
- 2,006,302
Letters of placement
Trust Investment Bank Limited (TIBL) ‘ 6.1.1 5,909 5,909
IFirst Dawood Investment Bank Limited (FDIBL) 6.1.2 75,000 75,000
80,909 80,909
[.ess: Provision against placements 6.1.3 (80,909) (80,909

This represents clean placement made on November 17, 2008 for a period of 14 days at the mark-up rate of 28%
per annum. The transaction remained unsettled at maturity and rescheduling have been made twice. Mark-up
accrued upto February 15, 2012 has been received. The Company filed a suit against TIBL in the Banking Court
for the recovery of outstanding principal along with mark-up. However, the Company on prudent basis has
maintained 100% provision against outstanding receivable. The Banking Court decreed the case in favour of the
Company on October 12, 2015. Execution application has been filed by the Company with notice issued to TIBL
for attachment of assets of TIBL.




0.1.2 This represents clean placement made on September 12, 2008 for a period of 94 days at the mark-up rate of 17%
per annum. The transaction remained unsettled at maturity and consequently the Company filed a suit against
FDIBL in the Sindh High Court (SHC) for the recovery of outstanding principal. However, the Company on
prudent basis has maintained 100% provision against outstanding receivable amount in its books of accounts.
The SHC decreed the case in favour of the Company on November 05, 2010. FDIBL has filed an appeal against
the judgement of SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, and the decision is pending.

2015 2014

——————— {Rupees in “000) -------
6.1.3  Particulars of provision

Opening balance 80,909 80,909
Provision made during the year - -
Closing balance 80,909 80,909
6.7 Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo)
Saudi Pak Industrial and Agriculiural Investment Company Limited - 190,714
PAIR Investment Company Limited - 402,244
ik Chman Investment Company Limited - 1,011,160
Iak Librya Holding Company (Private) Limited - 402,244
' - 2,000,302

6,2.1  Particulars of lendings

In local currency , - 2006302
[ie forcipn currency -

; 2.006.307

6.2.2  These represented reverse repo tending at mark-up ranging from Wil (2014: 6.75 % to 10.5 %) per anoum,

6.0, Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions

2015 2014

Held Further Held Further
by given as Total by given as Total

Company collateral Company collateral

(Rupees in '000")

Market Treasury Bills - - - - - N
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 2,006,302 - 2,006,302

) - - - 2,006,302 - 2,006,302
ysz —
“f
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2015 2014

Note ---—-—-- (Rupees in *000) ---—---
7.2 Investments by segments
Government sceurities
Martket treasury bills 3,711,363 3,328,219
Pakistan Investment Bonds 7.2.1 3,847,233 3,510,028
Gol [jarah Sukuks - 100,284
Fully paid up ordinary shares
Unlisted company 7.2.2 S00 500
Term finance certificates, debentures,
bonds and participation term certificates
Unlisted sukuk bonds 7.3 26,240 71,901
Unlisted term finance certificates 7.4 24,941 74,517
Qther investments
Term deposit receipts 7.5 2,344 2,344
Certificates of investment 7.6 67,500 67,500
Investrment in an associate
Fakalud Palestan Limited (TPL) 7.8.1 44,331 35,507
7,724,452 7,190,800

[ess: Provision for diminution in value of investment 79 (96,584) (135,683)
|ess Impaitment of investment in an associated company TPL 7.8.1 - (35,507)
funvestments (net of provisions) 7,627,868 7,009,608
Surplus on remeasurement of available-for-sale securities 15 102,131 125,959
Tolal investments 7,729,999 7,445 ‘5(:'?”

121 These carry mark-up (coupon rate) ranging from 9.25% to 11.25% (2014: 11.25%).

7.2.2 This represent investment i 66,125 (2014: 66,125) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each in Resource and Lngincering
Management Corporation Limited. Full provision has been made against this investment.

1.3 nwarticulars of investment in sukuk bonds

Name of issuer Note Rating Mark-up rate Total nominal value

2015 2014
------- (Rupees in ‘0{H) —--—--
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited '

(MLCEL) 7.3.1
15,000 (2014: 15,000) certificates A 3 months KIBOR plus - 45,661
Outstanding face value: Nil (assigned '
(2014: Rs. 3,044) each by
Maturity date: December 03, 2018 PACRA)

Chiel Executive Officer:
Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol

Kden Housing Limited (EHL) 7.3.2 Unrated 3 months KIBOR plus 3% 26,240 26,240
40,000 (2014 40,000) certificates

Outstanding face vaiue: Rs. 656

(2014: Rs. 656) each

Maturity date: June 29, 2014

Chiel Executive Officer:

Mr. Muhammad Amjad

DA




7.3.1 As per the original terms of repayment, these sukuk bonds were to be repaid in eight equal semi-annual

7.4

7.8

16

installments starting from June 2009 and maturing up till December 2013 along with mark-up at six months
IKIBOR plus 1,70%.

MLCFL paid mark-up till May 2009 and then defaulted the repayment of both principal and mark-up. In February
2010, MLCFL entered into a restructuring arrangement according to which Rs. 2.94 million of the outstanding
mark-up from June 2009 to November 2009 would be paid and sukuk bonds would be issued for the remaining
mark-up of Rs. 2.81 million. As per the restructuring agreement, new issued sukuk bonds are repayable in two
years at mark-up of three months KIBOR plus 1%. However, the mark-up payment would be made on quarterly
basis and the principal amount of Rs. 75 million is payable in thirty six quarterly installments starting from March
2010 and maturing up till December 2018,

During the year MLCFL has opted for early redemption option and in addition to it the Company sold MLCFL
sukuik bonds on December 16, 2015,

As per the original terms of repayment, these sukuk bonds were to be repaid in eight equal semi-annual

installments starting from June 2009 and maturing up till December 2012 along with mark-up of six months
(IBOR phas 2,50%.

Felen Housing Limited (EHL) paid two installments of Rs. 25 million each and then defaulted the repayment. On
Tune 30, 2010, BHL entered into a restructuring arrangement according to which outstanding principal of Rs. 150
million to be repaid on quarterly basis along with mark-up of KIBOR plus 2.5% and 3% for the first three years
anel fourth year, respectively. EHL defaulted for the two coupon mark-up due on March 29, 2014 and June 6,
2004 of Rs.£3.120 million each. However, on prudent basis, the Company has maintained full provision of the
anlstanding principal amount.

This represents investment in 30,000 term finance certificates (TFCs) of Rs. 5,000 each of Pak Libya Holding
Company (Private) Limited (PLHCPL) costing Rs. 124.096 million having maturity on February 07, 2016. These
THCs carry mark-up at six months KIBOR plus 1.60% per annum payable semi-annually, whereas principal is
payable semi-annually commencing from August 07, 2013, The credit rating of TFCs is AA assigned by PACRA
oil June 26, 201 5. Chief Executive Officer of PLHCPL is Mr. Abid Aziz.

This represents investment in term deposit receipts (TDRs) of Asset Investment Bank Limited (AIBL) for Rs. 10

million on Sept 9, 1996 for one year. Up till May 20, 1999 AIBL have paid Rs. 10 million including mark-up and
remaining principal amount is outstanding. Hence in January 2002, recovery suit was filed in Banking Court
Karachi. I ull provision has been made against these TDRs.

This represents investment in certificates of investment (COls) of Rs. 200 million for three years and Rs. 25
million for three months in 1996 and 1998 respectively. Bankers Equity Limited (BEL) defaulted the repayment
and went under fiquidation on April 18, 2001, hence claims of BEL were placed before Sindh High Court (SHC).
Flowever, the Company on prudent basis has maintained 100% provision against outstanding principal amount in
its hooks of accounts, Upto December 31, 2013, the Company received Rs. 157.5 million (70%) of the invested
amount on the directive of SHC.
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2015 2014

--- (Rupees in ‘000) -- --- (Rupees in *000) ---
Amount  Rating Amount Rating
7.7 Quality of available-for-sale securities {at market value)
Masket treasury bills 3,710,670 Sovereign 3,333,929 Sovereign
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 3,950,057 Sovereign 3,630,431 Sovereign
(ioP [jarah Sukuks - 100,130 Sovereign
Unlisted ordinary shares
Resource and Engineering Management
Carporation Limited (fully provided) - Unrated - Unrated
7,668,727 7,064,490
2015 2014
--- {(Rupees in ‘(00) ---
18 Lovestment in an associate - Takaful Pakistan Limited
IMace of incorporation Pakistan
Priveipal business Takaful
Humber ol shares held 8,699,500 8,699,500
Clost of investinent - Rupees in ‘000 87,000 87,000
Assels - Rupees in 000 577,443 577,176
Liabilitics - Rupees in 000 405,073 425264
Net contribution revenue - Rupees in 000 262,210 183,381
Profil afler tax - Rupees in '000 30,426 8,632
Pereentape ol investment 29% 29%
Break up value per share - Rupees 5.75 5.06
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 1.01 0.29
[L.atest available financial statements Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014
Dr. Syed Arif  Dr. Syed Aril
Name of Chiel Executive Hussain Hussain
(CEO) (CEO)
2015 2014

- (Rupees in “000) ---
7.8.0 Carrying value of investment in an associate under equity method

Carrying value of investrnent at beginning of the year - -

Share of profit before taxation from associate 9,774 -
Shate of taxation from associate (950 -

8,824 -
Reversal of impairment 35,507 -
Carrying value of investment at end of the year 44,331 -

7.9 Particulars of provision

Balance at beginning of the year 135,685 163,455
Charge for the year 6,560 -

Reversal during the year {45,661) (27,770)
Balance at end of the year 96,584 135,685




7.10  Particulars of provision in respect of types and segment

Available-for-sale securities

Unlisted ordinary shares - Resource and Engineering
Management Corporation Limited

Unlisted sukuks - Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited

Held-to-maturity securities

Term deposit receipts - Asset Investment Bank Limited
Unlisted sukuks bonds - Eden Housing Limited
Certificates of investment - Bankers Equity Limited

ADVANCES - NET

I Pakistan - local eurrency
Reatal Sharing Schemes

riterest Bearing Schemes

Char Aasan Scheme

Pakistan Housing Authority (PHA)

Ciawadar Employees Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS)

Shanclar Ghar Scheme
Uncarned income

Financing facility for Small Builders
(ihar Aasan Flexi Scheme

Bisma & Saima Projects

New Small Builders

IHousing [inance to employees
Partners’ death claims

Transitory district bank accounts - net
Advances - gross

Provision for non-performing advances
Specific provision

Rental Sharing Schemes

Interest Bearing Schemes

Ghar Aasan Scheme

Gawadar Employees Co-operative Housing Society
Shandar Ghar Scheme

Financing facility for Small Builders
Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme

Housing finance to employees

General provision

Advances - net of provision

8.2
83
g4
8.5
8.6

8.7

8.8
8.9
8.10
311
8.12
8.13
8.14

8.2
8.3
8.4
8.6
8.7
8.8
8.9
8.12
8.15

2015

2014

--- (Rupees in ‘000) ---

500 500
- 45,661
2,344 2,344
26,240 19,680
67,500 67,500
96,584 135,685
2015 2014
Restated
------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------
1,667,423 1,735,832
106,459 107,042
3,595,700 4 244 120
19,949 20,182
641,987 | 868,007
G470 | (451,919)
267,233 416,058
7,116 TG
8,654,016 5,972,006
68,663 74,802
82,344 ~
489,956 462,371
(190,798) (151,976)
(15,864) (8,850)
14,752,197 12,878,697
1,651,711 1,701,990
106,459 107,042
917,136 538,913
19,949 20,182
253,463 93,741
6,480 6,268
127,798 83,890
5,550 -
150,745 121,085
(3:239291)  (2,673,i11)
11,512,906 10,205,586




H

K2

R4

H.G

2015 2014
Restated
------- (Rupees in ‘000) --~~---

Particulars of advances (gross)

Short term (up to one year) 2,141,762 3,093,650

L.ong lesm (over one year) | 12,610,435 9,785,047
14,752,197 12,878,697

This represents advances under Profit & Loss Sharing Scheme, Simplified Scheme, New Simplified Scheme (NSS),
Giothabad Scheme and loan to Brecast Industries (Pvt.} Limited. No additional disbursement of advance under these
schemes has been made since 2000, Advances under NSS have been provided upto 98% (December 31, 2014: 97%)
ol the gross advance whereas advances under rest of the schemes are fully provided.

Mo new disbursement has been made under this scheme since the year 1979, In pursuance of the decision of the
Honerable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has not accrued interest on these advances since July 01, 2000.
All adlvances under this category has been classified as "Loss" and fully provided.

This seheme was based on Diminishing Musharaka for construction, purchase of houses and replacement of existing
fousing ndvance obtained by applicants from another financial institutions - Balance Transfer Facility (BTF) with
mgaimm finaneing limit of Rs. 7.5 million. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 to 240 monthly
iastatlments, The nel annual rental income 15 5% of the total assessed cost of the house, subject to upward revision
of anewal rent on cumulative basis at 25% after every 3 years. For disbursements after May 26, 2008, constant net
sinuat rental income of 15.5% is charged on daily product basis on the value of outstanding units. In addition, the
Compuny shares appreciation in the value of the house at rates ranging between 2.5% to 12.5% per annum assesscd
for various localitics, New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February 11, 2009,
Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Suspension of mark-up on Pakistan Housing Authority (PHA)

The Ministry of Finance (MoF) paid Rs. 44 million to the Company during 2009 and the remaining amount of Rs.
[74.04 million during the vear ended December 31, 2010 against outstanding amount of advance to PHA as the
transaction was guaranteed by the Federal Government. However, the MoF through its letter No. F.10(4)IF-1E2000-
594 daled April 17, 2010 instructed the Ministry of Housing & Works (MeH&W) {o pay this amount to the
Company on behalf of PHA and necessary provision in this regard should be made in the Federal Budget. The Mol
in iis letter [urther advised that the amount of Rs. 218.14 paid to the Company be utilised for increase in the paid up
capital, Accordingly, this amount has been disclosed as “Advance against issue of capital” in these financial
stalements.

Following the recognition of the said balance of Rs. 218.14 million as "Advance against issue of capital" the
balunce of accrued mark-up is long overdue, accordingly the Company has suspended the recording of this mark-up
income with retrospective impact in accordance with the requirement of IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accouniing Estimates and Errors', details of which has been shown in note 37 of the financial statements.

As per the arrangement Gawader Employees' Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) is required to adjust the
principal amount of advance of Rs. 47.50 million within thirty three months from December 26, 2006 through
transfer of balance in each individual case of the allottees of house under Ghar Aasan Scheme and under Ghar
Ausan Tlexi Scheme after completion and handing over possession of houses. Until the transfer of advances to
individuals, GECHS shall pay profit @ 13% per annum. Upto December 31, 2015, advances of Rs. 34.921 million

i




(2014 : Rs. 30.208 million), were transferred to 83 (2014 : 82) individual cases: i.e., 67 cases (2014: 67) under Ghar
Aasan Scheme, and 16 cases (2014: 15) under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme amounting to Rs. 29.054 million (2014:
24.831 million) and Rs. 5.867 million (2014: 5.377 million) respectively.

Final profit and loss sharing will be subject to final settlement of accounts which shall be made within three months
ol the completion of the project which will be audited by the person authotized by the Company. The advance is
seeured against mortgage of land. However, the Company has made provision of full amount on prudent basis.

87 Advances under Shandar Ghar Scheme for renovation of houses only with maximum financing fimit of Rs. 2.5
million are based on Murabaha approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2004 . The advance is repayablc
by the partners in 12 to 120 monthly installments. The Murahaba profit varies from 8% to 13.5% (2014 : 8% 1o
| 1.5%) per annum. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February 11, 2009. Provision
has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

#.8  Advances under Tinance facility for Small Builders' for construction of individual houses and apartments for sale to
the general public with maximum finaneing limit of Rs. 7.5 million is based on Musharaka financing approved by
thi: Foard of Directors in August 2007. This advance is for a peried of 12 to 18 months, extendable for further 3
iwnanths, (o be repaid at the end of the tenor along with the profit ranging from 13% to 18% (2014 : 13% to 18%) per
atnum, o is transferable to the buyer of the house/apartment under Ghar Aasan Scheme. New disbursement under
this scheme has been discontinued from November 17, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the
nricdential resalations. ‘

B4 Advances under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme for construction, renovation and purchase of house and replacement of
existing housing facility — Balance Transfer Facilities (BTF) with maximum financing Limit of Rs.10 million is
hased on Diminishing Musharaka. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 to 240 monthly installments. The
rental income for salaried person and business person is one year KIBOR with a spread of 3.25% and 3.50% (2014:
3.25% and 3,50%) respectivelv per annum,

E There are two installment plans under this scheme; variable instailment plan and fixed investment plan. New
dishursement under variable installment plan has been discontinued effective from July 27, 2009. Provision has
heen made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

E .10 Advances under 'Saima and Bisma Project' for construction of individual houses and apartments with maxinium

g financing limit of Rs. 10 million is based on Musharaka financing. This advance is for a period 12 to 18 maonths and

E profit is calculated on the basis of 2 years fixed KIBOR rate. The payment of installments is commenced from the

: next month of the completion of construction of houses and apartments. Provision has been made in accordance
with the prudential regulations.

Bt The Company introduced new scheme in the name of New Small Builder Scheme to facilitate the smail contractors /
frelividuals who are in business of selling and / or building houses and / or flats.

Maximum f{inancing limit is Rs. 10 million with the tenure of 12 to 24 months. Provision has been made in
accordance with the prudential regulations.

it tlousing advance is given to employees as per the terms of employment for purchase of land, renovation or
construction of houses, al concessional rates. Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential
repiilations,

of the parlners” passed away. Subsequently this will pay to respective pariners' heirs.

B4 This net balance mainly includes unpresented cheques of disbursements and unidentified coliections inn bank
aceounts at district and zonal offices.

K15 CGiencral provision against advances has been determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential

I K13 “This represents the insurance claims received from State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLICP) on behalf
! Repulations (R-4) issued by the State Bank of Pakistan on regular portfolio of consumer financing.
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H.16.2

8.16.3

5,07

H.1Y

Non-performing advances are classified and disclosed in substandard, doubtful and loss category based on
number of installments outstanding from the customers. The management is of the view that this is the
appropriate method for ascertaining classification of advances.

The SIBP vide BSD Circular No. 10 of 2009 dated October 20, 2009 had allowed banks/DFIs to avail benefit of
forced sales value of collaterals mortgaged with them while determining provisioning requirement against non-
performing tinancing. Further, 8BP vide BSD Circular No.1 of 2011 dated October 21, 2011 made certain
amendments in the Prudential Regulations for Consumer Financing with respect to allowing additional benefit of
forced sales value (FSV) of mortgage properties held as collateral against housing finances. According to the said
circular, the impact on profitability due to availing FSV benefit shall not be available for payment of cash
dividend or stock dividend. As at December 31, 2015, had FSV benefit of IH&SMEFD Circular No. 04 of 2014
not been taken, loss for the year before taxation would have been increased by Rs. 634.8 million respectively.

2015 2014
------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----nmm
Particulars of loan / advances to Associated Companies, Directors ete.

Debts due by directors, executives or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with
any other persons:

2015 2014
------- (Rupees in “000) -------

Ralance at beginning of the year 627,102 058,549
Loan / advances granted during the year 137,250 92,484
Repayments / adjustments (149,999 (123.931)
Balance at end of the year 614,353 627,102

There were no debts given to any companies or firms in which the directors of the Company arc interested as
directors, partners or in case of private companies, as members during the year.
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2015 2014
Restated
Note  we-m- (Rupces in *000) -----
OFFEIATING FIXED ASSETS
£iprital winletn-progress 9.1 11,684 17,729
ropety i equipraent 9.2 359,270 386,608
Totgible ussels 9.4 2,282 2,262
373,236 406,599
Cnpitab work-in-progress
Civil wirks 11,06% 17,114
Soltware desipning and development 615 615
11,684 17,729
I'roperty & equipment
Freehold Office Furniture Electrical Office Computer Mator Total
land premises and fixtures installations  cquipment cquipment vehicles
---- {Rupees in '000%) ---
Yoeur ended December 31, 2015
Cpening net book value 11,640 325,131 28,706 9,475 8,305 2,878 475 386,608
Additions - - 1,780 - 4,855 226 5,011 11,872
Lhispasais )
Clost - - (25) - (174) (24.866) (24) (25,089)
Deprecintion - - 25 - 174 24,866 24 25,089
Depreciation eharge - (19,092) {1,579) {2,956) (2,770) 200D {487} {34,885)
Addjustaents i
- costt - - (80) 2 (3,211 (1,036) 46 {4,279)
- deprecifion® - 2 82 {2 (73 (5 (46) (40)
- {2) 2 - (3.284) (1,041) - {4,325)
Clesing net beok value 11,640 306,037 22,909 6,519 7,106 60 4,595 159,270
Aal Deceanber 31, 2015
Clost 11,640 389,171 82,610 42,583 49,095 94,117 58,501 727717
Acemuunlated depreciation - {83,134) (59,70 {36,004) (41,989) (94,057} (53,502) (368,447}
Met bk valie 11,640 306,037 22,909 6,519 7,106 60 4999 359270
Annual e of depreciation (%) - 5 10 10 15-3333 33.33 20
Frechold Office Furniture Electrical Qffice Computer Motor Total
land premises and fixtures installatiens  eguipment equipment vehicles ’
(Rupeces in '000")
A daenry AL, 2014
t 11,640 80,948 80,749 42,581 43,425 117,486 55,538 432,367
setiibdad deprecintion - (56,540) (44,557) (30,147 (35,807) (114,044) (55,136} (335,833
Bat baok valuye 11,640 24,808 36,192 12,434 7.618 3,442 402 96,536
Ve erube] Becomber 31, 2014 - Restated
Cheniing nat book value 11,640 24,808 36,192 12,434 7,618 3,442 402 96,536
- 308,223 259 - 4,595 2,443 220 315,740
: - - (73) - (39%) (136) (2,290) (2,894)
Prepeeciution - - 73 - 300 136 2,290 2,880
: - : : ©) - : )
Utepevcistion charpe - {7,900) (1,745} (2,959 (3,903 (3,009) {147} (25,663)
Clasing act book value 11,640 325,131 28,706 94735 8,305 2,876 475 186,608
Adout Devrmber 31, 2014 - Restated
ot 11,640 389,171 80,935 42,581 47,625 119,793 53,468 745,213
Agauriulited depreciation - (64,040) {52,229) {33,106) (39,320) (116,917) (52,993) (358,605)
et bouk valee 11,640 325,131 28,706 9475 8,305 2,876 475 386,608

Flhix represents adjustinents in order to recongile assets as per subsidiary and general ledger.

/),1//4,.
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9.2.1 Disposal of operating fixed assets

Net book Sale Gain on Mode of Particular of

Pavticalars Cost . .

value proceeds | disposal disposal buyers
flems having cost less than
onc million rupees or book
value less than two hundred
and fifty thousand rupees
Furniture and fixtures 5 ) ) } Auction Various
Camputer equipment 24,866 - 63 63 Auction Various
{Mfice cquipment 162 - - - Auction Various

Mobile phones Fx Zonal Chicf &

12 - 3 3 Settlement Ex AVP

Motar vehicles 4 _ 9 9 Auction Various
2015 25,089 - 75 75
2014 2,894 5 1,018 1,013

9.3 Until last year, a building was recognized under capital work-in-progress amounting to Rs. 260.34 milhon in the
financial statements and an amount of Rs. 47.88 million was recognized as commitment against pending contractor's
bill. Manapement received the completion certificate dated October 10, 2014 from the said coutractor in respect of
(he building. Since the building was available for use iast year, accordingly the management hag rectilicd crror and
capitalized the building at its cost in the prior year. The financial statements have been restated in accordance with
the requirement of IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', details of which has
been shown in note 37 of the financial statements.

pip




2015 2014
Note ---—-—-- (Rupees in ‘000) ~----—
0.4 Intangibles

Year ended December 31,
Opening net book value 2,262 2,363
Aclditions 95 193
[hisposals

Clost - -

[Depreciation - -
Amuortizalion charge 9.4.1 (75) (294)
Closing net book value 2,282 2,262
As ol Fanuary 01,
ot 9,874 9,779
Acoumulited amortization (7,592) (7,517}
el ook value 2,282 2,262

LA The cost is being amortized over a period of 3 years.
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

LT Dielirred lax asset amounting to Rs. 2,370 million has not been recognized as the management believes that it is
' ol probable that taxable profit will be available in the foreseeable future against which these deductible
ternporary differences can be utilized,

16,2 As al December 31, 2014, the Company recognized deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 544 million on the
deductible temporary differences of actuarial loss of defined benefit plan. This recognition was not in line with
the bagic assessment judgement made by the management in respect of deferred tax asset recognition.
Accordingly, the management has rectified error relating to prior years. The management has restated the
financial statements in accordance with the requirement of IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Fistimales and Lrvors', details of which has been shown in note 37 of the financiat statements.
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2015 2014
Restated
Note  www-m-- {Rupees in ‘000) --—-—-
it OTHER ASSETS
Mark-up income accrued in [ocal currency
l [nvestments 190,257 187,165
Advances 46,871 42,263
= Advance for purchase of land - housing projects 11.1 50,470 50,470
i Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 158,338 174,394
Advance financial relief to employees 11.2 - -
Advance taxation (payments less provision) 444,440 80,890
l Other receivable against advances 36,390 20,013
Assets acquired from Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation
Finance Corporation (PRRFC) 11.3 - -
926,766 555,195
Less: Provision held against other assets 11.1.1 (50,470) (50,470)

876,296 504,725
WA~




(1.t This represents an advance payment made in 2007 i.e. 25% of the purchase cost of two pieces of land measuring
{03 acres situated in Gwadar. The Company intend to construct low cost houses on this land to promote
allordable housing facilities to low income groups of the residents of Gwadar. Currently, negotiations for

purchase of it at revised value is in progress. The management on prudent basis, has made full provision against
(his amount,

2015 2014
Restated

------- {Rupees in ‘000) -
(1,00 Particulars of provision apgainst other assets

Balance at beginning of the year 50,470 50,470
Charpe for the year - -
Balance at end of the year 50,470 50,470

82 PFinancial refiel in lieu of bouns to employees amounting to Rs. 130.4 mitlion paid in financial year 2012, 2013
and 2014 was subject to approval of the Board. The board approval was made before the financial statements for
(he financial year 2014 was approved, therefore this amount should have been recorded as expense in the
financial year 2014, Accordingly, the management has rectified errors relating to prior years. The management
has restated the financial statements in accordance with the requirement of IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes
in Aceounting Estimates and Errors', details of which has been shown in note 37 of the financial statements.

P As divected vide SRO 499(1)/80 dated May 13, 1980 by Finance Division - Government of Pakistan, the
Company (formerly HBFEC) took over assets and liabilities of PRRFC. Further, as per the directive of the
Ciovernment ol Pakistan all assets and liabilities are shown distinctively as below, however the Company does not
liave any contral over these assets and liabilities.

2015 2014
Note  ---—— (Rupees in “000) ~—ve-
{fukistan Refupees Rehabilitation Finance Company assets
! Assels
Fixed agsels 1 [
Cashoand bank balances 518 518
l Investments 253 253
[.oans and advances 16,583 16,583
Inter-centre adjustment 2,432 2,432
! Olher receivables 1,992 1,992
Sunelry deblors 200 200
Advances, deposits and prepayments 227 227
l 22,206 22,206
= Provision for doubtful debts (2,579 (2,579)
P 19,627 19,627
l Liabilitics
Sundry creditors 93 93
- Accrued expenses - A8 38
Return on capital 7,371 7,371
! Other liabilities 129 129
7,631 7,631
! Net assets 11,996 11,996
- 12, BORROWINGS
; In Pakistan - local currency 12.1 11,242,300 11,242,300
Outside Pakistan - foreign currency - -
: /‘O/f//"r ' 11,242,300 11,242,300




2015 2014

Note  -w--—- {Rupees in ‘000) ~---—-
121 Detail of borrowings
Secared
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 12.1.1 11,242,300 11,242,300

1201 The credit lines from SBP are secured by certificates issued by the Company under House Building Finance
Corporation (Issue and Redemption of Certificates) Rules, 1982 that are guaranteed by the Government of
Pakistan (Gol).

The credit lines are repayable as follows:

Credit line Amount of eredit Repayment period
number lines expired on
--- Rupees in '000 ---
58 1,400,000 June 25, 2006
59 1,833,000 September 07, 2007
60 1,850,000 June 30, 2008
61 2,406,000 August 08, 2008
62 2,200,000 November 10, 2010
63 1,053,300 July 12, 2011
64 500,000 February 26, 2012
11,242,300

Az per the above schedule, credit line no. 58 to 64 were payable on respective repayment date but were not paid.
i puesuance of the Company's request, the SBP, through its letfer no. SMED Refinance 900/06-2071, dated

September 02, 2006, advised the Company to pay mark-up @ 9.5% for utilization of the said amount till the date
I of repayment of principal amount of credit lines. SBP has also clarified on request of the Company that the mark-
ap so chareed is the regular remuneration for credit lines.
i The Mol vide its letter no. F.No.1(3) IF-11/2016-1122, dated, January 09, 2017 has approved the conversion of
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) credit lines of Rs. 11,242 million along with outstanding mark-up inte ordinary
: shares (Note 1)
l 2015 2014
Restated
: Note  -=n--m- (Rupees in ‘000) -------
l i3, OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up expense accrued in Jocal currency
L Sukuk bonds 13.1 58 58
' Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 13.2 4,053,741 2,985,722
Accrued expenses 13.3 108,876 445,809
; Retivement and other service benefits 29 4,356,942 3,156,572
! Ikefundable to customers against advances 12,121 15,228
fnsurance premium payable 13.4 51,887 38,754
: Deferred credits 13.5 1,596,859 1,502,011
i Reimbursement of claims by Government of Pakistan 579 579
l Retention money payable 6,711 11,009
o Application fee - Gwadar Project 3,881 3,881
Agents' deposit money 185 385
! Others 3,072 3,785
10,194,912 8,163,793
! 13.1  This represents mark-up accrued on sukuk bonds issued to various financial institutions.

LG
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2015 2014

Note ---—-- (Rupees in ‘000) -------
Mark-up expense acerued in local currency
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
Balance at beginning of the year 2,985,722 3,965,546
Add: Mark-up accrued on SBP credit lines 12.1.1 1,068,019 1,068,018
Share of (loss) / profit 13.2.1 - (47,842)
4,053,741 4,985,722
[ess: Repayment - (2,000,000)
Balance at end of the year 4,053,741 2,985,722

No profit and {oss sharing is made in the year 20135 as all credit lines became over due in the year 2012 and hence
revk-up was charged thereon.

increment of salary expense amounting to Rs. 307.35 for the financial year 2012, 2013 and 2014 paid in 2015,
and bonus amounting to Rs. 51.7 for the financial year 2014 paid in 2015 was approved before approval of 2014
financial statements, however these were not recorded in 2014, Accordingly, the management has rectified errors
ridading Lo prior years. The management has restated the financial statements in accordance with the requirement
ol IAS § '"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', details of which has been shown in
noie 37 of the (inancial statements.

Monthly insurance premium is payable to State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLICP) against the
insuranee of ouwlstanding dues from the partners in case of their death or total disablement and insurance premium
payable Lo Takalul Pakistan Limited against insurance of mortgage property. The amount of these premiums are
recoverable from partners in their monthly installments.

2015 2014
Note - (Rupees in ‘000) —-----
Deferred credits
Balance at beginning of the year 1,502,011 {383,827
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses 13,485 6,220
Provision against insurance receivable from partners {9,658) 74
Profit received on investment from deferred credits 91,021 111,885
[alance at end of the year 13.5.1 1,596,859 1,502,011
Deferred credit balance as at end of the year comprises of:
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses 13.52 & 13.5.3 556,918 543,433
Urofit/commission received from State Life Insurance
Corporation - net of death ¢laims 13.54 208,562 208,562
Provision against insurance receivable from partners (260,817 (251,159
(52,255) {42,597)
Unidentifiable insurance premium contribution received
from borrowers / partners during prior years 13.5.5 52,503 52,503
Property insurance (12,495 (12,495)
40,008 40,008
tncome from investments from deferred credit balance 13.56 1,157,188 1,066,167
1,701,859 1,607,011
Donations 13.5.7 (105,000) (105,000)

i/ 1,596,859 1,502,011




2015 2014
------- {Rupees in ‘000) ~———--

13.5.2 Demand charges - net of recovery expenses

13.5.3

Demand charges recovered 664,302 650,271
Less: Recovery charges paid
Balance at beginning of the year (106,838) (104,589)
Praring the year (546) {2,249)
{107,384) {106,838)
Balance at end of the year 556,918 543,433

This represents demand charges recovered after June 30, 2000 net of recovery expenses, transferred to this
account in accordance with the requirement of section 24(20)d) of the House Building Finance Corporation
(HBFC) Act, 1952 as amended by the HBFC {Amendment) Ordinance, 2001. The Board of Directors has
approved that this amount will be used for meeting direct recovery expenses and for charitable purposes.
However, the adoption of change in accounting treatment for long outstanding deferred credit balances is pending
{or anoroval from the Companv’s Board of Directors and the State Bank of Pakistan.

According to the agreement with SLIC, death claims lodged after the profit / commission distribution will be
adjusted by the Company through profit / commission charged to deferred credit account.

This represents amount received in prior years’ on account of Group Insurance Premium from individual
borrowers / partners on account of rate differences. As at December 31, 2000 these amounts were pending
aflocation to individual partners / borrowers. Due to non-availability of the relevant records, these amounts have
been translerred to this account after approval of the Board of Directors of the Company and will be used (or
reliel of widows, orphans and incapacitated partners which are not covered by any other relicf package or group
insurance policy.

‘This represents income from investmenis allocation against the income earned up to the current year by the
Company in respect of the items reflected in the deferred credit account using average yicld.

in 2012 donation of Rs. 2.5 million were paid to IBA Endowment Fund, in 2011 Rs. 2.5 million was paid o
Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (STUT) and in 2010, Rs. 100 million were donated to Prime
Minister Flood Relief Fund.

14. SHARE CAPITAL
141  Authorized Capital
2015 2014 2015 2014
Number of Shares e (Rupees in ‘000) -------
600,000,000 600,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 6,000,000 6,000,000
(4.2 Issued, subscril Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each:
6 6 - Fully paid in cash - -
300,000,000 300,000,000 - Issued for consideration other than cash 3,000,000 3,000,000
100,000 100,000 - Shares issued for consideration in cash 1,000 1,000
300,100,006 300,100,006 3,001,000 3,001,000
Pattern of share holdings:
187,562,506 187,562,506 - Federal Government 1,875,625 1,875,625
112,537,500 112,537,500 - State Bank of Pakistan 1,125,375 1,125,375
300,100,006 300,100,006 3,001,000 3,001,000
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As al December 31, 2015, the Company has negative equity of Rs. 754.8 million against the minimum required
equily of Rs. 6 billion as prescribed by the SBP for DFIs through BSD Circular No.19 dated September 05, 2008,
The State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter No. BSD/BAID/659/2145/2012 dated February 16, 2012 granted
cxemption to the Company from the minimum capital requirement till December 31, 2012 or compietion of
privalization / restructuring process, whichever is later. The Company is in process of financial restructuring and
proposal in this regard was submitted to the Ministry of Finance and SBP.

The Mol vide its letter no. F.No.1(3) IF-1I/2016-1122, dated, January 09, 2017 has approved the conversion of
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) credit lines of Rs. 11,242 million along with outstanding mark-up into ordinary
shares (Note 1)

In view of the above, the shortfall against minimum capital requirement is temporary and the Company will be in

compliance with the minimum capital requirement.

2015 2014

------- {(Rupees in ‘000) ~--mru-
(DETICET) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Aviilable-for-sale securities

Market reasury bills (693) 5,710
Pakistan investment Bonds (PIBs) 102,824 120,403
Ciod* {jarsh Sukuks ~ (154)

102,131 125,959

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Claims not acknowledged as debt 47990 47990

[ the year 1995, the Company entered into an agreement with SMS Courier (Pvt) Limited (SMSCPLY, a courier
service company. Subsequently, due to unsatisfactory service, the Company terminated the agreement with
SMSCPL. SMSCPL claimed indemnity of loss for Rs, 39.89 million and filed a suit for recovery Irom the
Company which is pending for adjudication ir Honourable Sindh High Court. The legal advisor of the Company
is of the oninion that no economic outflow is expected in this respect.

In the year 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Liaquat National Hospital (LNH) in Karachi for
providing medical facilities/treatments to employees of the Company and their dependents. LNH lodged a claim
of Rs. 8.1 million against the Company which include bills of the individuals who were not referred by the
Company to LNH, as these were neither the Company's employees nor their dependents. Currently, the case is
pending for adjudication in Honourable Sindh High Court. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opnioin
that no economic outflow is expected.

e
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2015 2014

Restated
Note  ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----—--
Conmumitments
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed 417,492 228,105
Vauity investment in Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited 200,000 200,000
Land purchased for Gawadar Housing Projects 149,700 149,700
Landd purchased for Gawadar Office 9,750 G750
Rental due under operating lease agreements in respect of vehicles
Not later than one year 1,025 2,226
Later than one year but not later than five years 200 1,317
2015 2014
Note -----—-- (Rupees in ‘000) ----—---
RENTAL/MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST INCOME
O ngdvanes to customers 1,723,498 1,672,242
O investinent in securities;
Available-Torsale 17.1 744,540 699,668
Held-to-maturily 4,251 10,994
Ui lensding to linancial institutions:
Letlers of placement 617 2,141
Hepurchase apreement lending {Reverse Repo) 16,477 243,794
O bank balances 13,597 16,001
2,502,980 2,644,840

This arnount is net-off with mark-up accrued on deferred credit balance amounting to 91 million @ 6.06% (2014
Re. 1119 million @ 8.09%).

RENTAL/MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSE

Mark-up on State Bank of Pakistan credit lines 13.2 1,068,019 1,068,019
Mark-up on sukuk certificates - 5,527
1,068,019 1,073,546

RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS

Tagged accounts settled 19.1 (9,562) 260

This represents adjustment made in head office records for accounts closed at district offices while balance
appearing at head office records.

REVERSAL DUE TO RELIEF PACKAGE AND REPROCESSING

Relief package and settlement scheme 20.1 1,021 36,987

Reprocessing and closing adjustment 20.2 17,194 28,658

Waiver to partner accounts 4,187 -
22,402 65,645

This represents reversal of rental income which was credited to profit and loss account in previous years. This
reversal has been made as a result of relief package and settlement scheme announced by the Board of Directors.
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‘This represents reversal of income recognized in previous years based on reconciliations of collection and

disbursement.

This represents waiver of mark-up to partners under relief pacakage.

OTHER INCOME

Inspection and application fee
Crain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Miscctlancous

9.2.1
211

2015

2014

------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

24,078 16,893

75 1,013
39,425 35,702
63,578 53,608

This represents advance unit purchase charges for Gas Flexi, income earned on employee house building finance

and conveyenace advances,

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances, and other perquisites
Charpe for defined benefit plan - pension
Post retirerment medical benefits
Fnployees' compensated absences
[Lepairs and mainlenance

Lol and professional

iLenl, axes, insurance, electricity, etc.
Sttionery and printing

Advertiscment and publicity

Awlitors’ remuneration

Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Traveling and conveyance

Postage and telephone

Ealertainment

Security puards

Subseription and publication

iducation and training

Others

Auditors' remuneration

Audil fee

Half yearly review

Special certification, internal control over financial reporting,
other reviews and sundry advisory fee

OTHER PROVISIONS / WRITE OFFS

Provision for doubtful receivable insurance premium from partners

13.3
293
293

221
9.2
94

2015

2014
Restated

——————— {Rupees i ‘000) -------

985,822 993,504
333,622 201,378
113,183 132,338
56,484 90,898
37,252 35,518
28,503 59,900
38,557 40,008
12,418 9,803
13,042 14,751
2,500 2,734
34,885 25,664
75 294
15,505 9,398
16,989 15,196
3,976 3,170
4,356 2,577
507 177
1,757 826
4,092 5,059
1,703,525 1,643,124
2015 2014

------- (Rupees in ‘000) -~

1,100 1,100
385 385
(1,015 1,250
2,500 2,735
75% (19)




2015 2014

Note —~--m- (Rupees in ‘000) -------
24. OTHER CHARGES
Penally imposed by State Bank of Pakistan ' 294 3,077
Commission and bank charges 7,009 7.162
7,303 10,239
25. TAXATION
Company
Current
- for the ycar : 122,305 152,666
- for prior years - -
122,305 152,666
Deferred
- lor the year 10.1 - -
122,308 152,666
Associale
Churrent tax
- for the year 7.8.1 05() -
- (o priee years . )
950 -
Delerved tax
- for the year - -
950 -
123,255 152,666
251  Helationship between accounting (loss) / profit and taxation
Accounting (loss) / profit before taxation (728.705) 155,950
Tax on accounting profit @ 32% (2014: 33%) - 51,464
Tax effects:
- Shave of taxation from an associate 950 -
- Super tax @ 3% ' - 24,020
- Lxpenses thal are not deductible for determining taxable profit 122,305 128,646
123,255 152,666

252 Pederal Board of Revenue (FBR) while assessing taxable income for the tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014 has
disaliowed certain expenses and added to income certain amounts on account of mark-up on SBP credit lines,
demand charges, other provision/write-off etc. and raised demands of Rs. 253, Rs. 312, Rs. 385 and Rs, 274
miltion for the tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively. Against demand raised by FBR, the Company
has paid Rs. 464 million*. The Company appeals for the tax years 2010, 2012 and 2013 are pending before
Appellale Tribunal Inland Revenue and 2014 before Commissioner Appeals for disallowances of cxpenses on

account of mark-un on SBP credit lines. demand charges and other nrovisions amounting to Rs. 3.447 million.
*Out of Rs. 464 miltion, Rs. 100 million was paid subsequent to the year end.

2015 2014
l Restated
26, BASIC & DILUTED (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE ~ ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ~---—-

(Loss) / profit for the year - Rupees in ‘000 - (851,960) 3,284

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 300,100,006 300,100,006

//)’l// Basic / diluted (loss) / earnings per share - Rupee _ (2.84) 0.01
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29.2

Diluted earnings / {loss) per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in
issuc at December 31, 2015 and 2014 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is

excrcised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

STAFF STRENGTH

As at end of the year

Permanent

Clontractual basis

RIVTTREMEINT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS
Pension

Post relivement medical benefits
Eanployees' compensated absences

Principal actuarial assumptions

2015

2014

Py— (Rupees in <000) ------

82,376 70,155
107,638 244,608
190,014 314,763

698 734

51 9
2,887,120 1,842,450
901,830 791,891
567,992 522,231
4,356,942 3,156,572

The principal assumptions used in actuarial valuations carried out by the independent actuary as at December 31, 2015,

under the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ method, are as follows: -

Pension Fund

Post retirement medical

Compensated absences

benefits
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Discount rate per annum ‘ 10% 11.75% [ 10% 11.75% 10“u§ 1 l75%l
Expected per annum rate of : ’
return on plan assets 10% 11.75% - - - -
|
[ixpected per annum rate of |
increase in future salaries 10% 11.75% - - 10% 11.75%
tndexation of pension 9% 9.25% - - - .

Indexation of medical benefits | -] - 2.5% 3.5% - 1\ -

Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan

Pension Fund

Post retirement medieal benefits

2015 2014 2015 2014
------ (Rupees in *000) ------ --———-- (Rupees in ‘000) -~
resent value of defined benefit obligations 5,721,530 4,559,650 901,830 791,891
Fair value of plan assets (2,834,410) (2,717,200) -
Met linbility al end of the year 2,887,120 1,842,450 201,830 791,891




Pension Fund Post retirement medical bencefity

2015 2014 2015 2014
------ (Rupeces in ‘000) ------ -~----- {(Rupees in 000} ~—--—-
29.2.1 Movement in present value of defined bencfit obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligations at
begiuning of the year 4,559,650 3,237,201 791,891 939,962
Current service cost 136,409 100,207 21,342 25,113
Interest cost 516,484 413,131 91,841 107,225
Bencfits paid during the year (328,088) (118,527) (20,530) (15,206)
Remeasurement: actuarial loss / (gain) 837,075 927,638 17,286 (265,233)
Present value of defined benefit obligations at
end of the year 5,721,530 4,559,650 901,830 791,891
29.2.7 Movement in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan asscts at
bepinning of the year 2,717,200 2,399,696
Expecled return on plan assets 319,271 311,961
Benetits paid by the Company 278,088 118,527
Contributions made by the Company 50,000 -
Menalits paid during the year {328,088) {118,527}
[tetneisurcment: actuarial loss / (gain) (202,061) 5,543
Iasr value of plan assets at end of the year 2,834,410 2,717,200
9.} Charge for defined benefit plan
e xpease recognized in profit and foss account
Current service cost 136,409 100,207 21,342 25,113
I Mel interest expense 197,213 101,170 91,841 107,225
Ioxpense for the year 333,622 201,377 113,183 oI
! 14932 Remeasurement actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in
other comprehensive income
! Actuariad loss / (gain) on defined benefit obligations 837,075 927,638 17,286 (2645331
Actuarial loss / (gain) on fair value of plan assets 202,061 (5,543) - -
1,039,136 922,095 17,286 {26523
! 294 Net vecognized liability
Nel linbility at beginning of the year 1,842,450 837,505 791,891 939,992
; Ixpense recopnised in profit and loss account 333,622 201,377 113,183 132,338
. Benefits paid by the Company (278,088) (118,527) (20,530) (15,2046)
Contributions during the year (50,000) -

Remeasurement loss / {gain) recognised in other
comprehensive income 1,039,136 922,093 17,286 {(265,233)
Met tiability at end of the year 2,887,120 1,842,450 901,830 791,801

5 Components of plan assets

Dank balances 1,233 258

[}%4 2,834,410 2,717,200

! Giovernment securities and TFC's 2,833,177 2,716,942




29.5.1 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns availabie on the asscts
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investiments are based on gross redemption
yiclds as at the reporting date. Expected return on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return expericneed

29.0

it the market.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each

assumption is summarized below:

[nerease in BYiscount Rate by 1 %

Iregrense in Discount Rate by 1 %

ierease in expected [uture increment in salary by 1%

Decrease in expected future increment in salary by 1%

birerease in expected fiiture increment in pension by 1%

Dicerease snexpected future increment in pension by 1%

Inerease in expected Tuture increment in medical benefit by 1%

Drecesase wexpected future increment in medical benefit by 1%

Ifive year's data on surplus / deficit of the plan and actuarial adjustments

Penstou Fund

Pre

Fadr vidug of plin sssets

sib value of defined benefit obligations

Actirinl (gain) / toss on delined benefit
obligations
Actuariad (loss) / pain on plan assets

Post vetiverment medieal benefits

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Actuarial (gain} / loss on obligation

Pension
Fund

Post

retirement

medical
bencfiis

{Rupces in ‘000) -—--—-

5,046,880 800,811
(6,561,464)  (1,024,608)
5,947,343 -
(5,514,768) -
6,330,887 -
(5,213,214) ;
- 990,901
- 824,897
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Rupees in "000")
5,721,530 4,559,650 3,237,201 3,140,201 2,620,728
(2,834,410} (2,717,200) (2,399,696} (2,205,520) (1,887,507}
2,887,120 1,842,450 837,505 934,681 733,101
837,075 927,638 (247,879) 225,750 94,017
(202,061) 5,543 59,458 (72,569) (12,438)
17,286 638,194 738,826 1,003,934 939,992
- 225,831 53,154 163,563 (189,627




2015 2414
--—--- (Rupees in *000) --—---
29.8  LEmployces' compensated absences

Balance at beginning of the year 522,231 434,903
[ixpense for the year 56,484 90,898
Benelits paid (10,723) {3,570}
Balance at end of the year 567,992 522,231

30, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing Dircctor* Directors Exceutives
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
{(Rupees in "60{")

Ditcerors fees - - 670 230 - -
Maovagerinl rentocration 7,535 2,851 - - 20,730 20,219
Fent and howse mainlenance 3,451 1,710 - - 14,481 14,473
Lhilities 628 236 - - 996 L7a
Mudival 129 236 - - 3,684 3,644
Charge for delived bencfil plan - 1,466 - - 12,594
Crhers 6,495 1,540 - 104 11,435 14,557
18,238 8,042 670 334 51,326 66,668
Nugher ol persons 1 ! 8 7 18 22

Managing Dircetor was appointed on May 14, 2014,

A0 Exceutive means emplayee, other than the Chief Executive and Directors, whose basic salary exceed five hundred
thousad rupees in a financial year.

30.2  The Company also provides free usc of the Company maintained car to Managing Director and Executives in
accordance with their entitlements.

At




FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

‘The fair value of traded investments other than those classified as held to maturity is based on quoted market
price. Fair value of unquoted equity investments is determined on the basis of break up value of these
investments as per the latest availabie financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with
sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reiiable data
regarding market rates for similar instruments. The provision for non-performing advances has been calculated
in accordance with the Company's accounting policy as stated in note 3.4 to these financial statements.

The vepricing profile, effective rates and maturities are stated in note 34.2 and 34.3.

The management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and lighilities arc not
sipnificantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or in
the case of customer advances are frequently repriced.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Retaled partics comprise associated undertaking, retirement benefit plans, directors and key management
personnel of the Company. These transactions were made on substantially the same commercial terms as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and did not involve more than a normal
amounl of risk. There were no transactions with the key management personnel other than those under the terms
ol their employiment, Details of transactions with the related parties other than those which have been disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2015 2014

————— (Rupees in *000) -~
Relationship Nature of Transaction

Assoctated undertaking

Takalul Pakistan Limited Insurance premium paid 9,646 9,226
Key management personnel Proceeds from disposal of

operating fixed assets 3 5

Loans and advances 7,752 11,487

Retirement and other service benefits Pension fund 15,287 7,896

Past retirement medical benefits 4,775 3,789

Benevolent fund - 31

The related party status of outstanding receivables and payables as at December 31, 2015 are included in

respective noles to the financial statements.

Remuneration to key management personnel is disclosed in Note 30 to these financial statements.

P4
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CAPUTAL ADEQUACY

Atale ank of Pakistan (SBP) requires Banks/DEFls (o maintain regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks which should ztieast be equal to (0% of towt risk
weiphted assets, As per SBP BPRD Circular ne 06 dated August 15, 2013 whercin SBP has asked banks/DFls to implement Basel I reforms issued by the Basce) Committce on
Bank by Supervision (BCBS) o further strengthen the capital related rules. The Company has implemented Basel Il framework in the light of SBP instructions. The Company
moniters s capital adequacy ratie and endeavours to maintain it at a fevel sutficiently higher than the minimum regulatory requirement. The Company calculates capita
equienment as per Basel T regulatory framework, using the Standardized Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk whereas Basic [ndicator Approach for Operational Risk.

Crbfeetives of Capital Management

The capiul managemen objectives of the Company are as follows:
« Veaogintain suflicicnt capital to support overall business strategy, expansion and geowth;
Cointegiate capital aflocation decisions with the strategic and financial planning process;
T'o mect the regulatory capital adequacy ratios as defined by SBY;
Torsntieguard the Company’s abilily to continue as & going concern so that it can continue Lo provide adequate retum to sharcholders; and
Vo have o pradent bulter (o protect the Company under different economic and stress scenarios caused by unexpected and unforesceable events.

livandler o strenpthen the solvency of Development Financial Institutions {DFIs), SBP through its BSD Circular No. 19 of 2008 dated September 5, 2008 has asked to raise their
i paid up capital to Rs. 6 billion (free of losses) up to December 31, 2009 However, there is i shortfall of Rs. 7.79 billion in minimum capilal requirement (free of

louses) i order 1o ineel the shortfall, the Company has approached its shareholders ie. Ministry of Finance and State Bank of Pakistan, 1o inject the required capital, the eventual
ontcore of whieh has been disclosed in Note [,

SO through s B30 Circular No. 07 of 2009 dated April ‘15. 2009 has also asked to achieve the minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR) of 10%, The capital adequacy ratio

(€A of the Convpumy stands al 6.38% of 1ty risk weighted exposures as at December 31, 2015. The Company has maintained capital adequacy ratio welf beiow 10%.

ez eapital adegnney mtio of the Company was subject to the Basel TH capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State Bank of Pakistan through ils circular BPRD Circular
felir, (16 of 2003 dated Avpust 1S, 2015,

Alizaes Ingdistetions are ¢lfeciive from December 31, 2013 in a phased manner with full implementation intended by December 31, 2019.

s Vel HE puidelines banks / DFLs are required (0 maintain the following ratios on an ongoing basis:

Phgsen vrepngement and Ml maplementation of the minimum capital requirements:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

500% DD ssev% ([T o0 f [ 600% 3| 600% || 600% 11 680% .
1,50% 1,50% 1,50% 1,50% L 1L50% !
 650% 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% | 0% Lo TS0
! 10.00% 10.00% 1000% i 16,00% ! I 1000% LG
A : 025% | 085% Pl 190% REE .
1 H
0 s con i1 1000% 10.00% i0.25% 1065% | 11.28% ! ll FLO0% 12.50%
c TR o H o : 1 - i bl . .

The Compady's sepulatary capitad under Basel TH framework (s anaiyzed in following terms:

Tier | Capital {gaing-coneern capital)

1 Comrmon Equity Tier | (CET 1)
1o Additionad Tier T (ATI)

o Tier 2 Capital (gone-concern capital)
Conemon Faguity Tier L{CET1)
Connnon Equity Tier | eapilal consist sum of the foliowing iems:

i Fully paid up (cormmen shares) capital / assigned capital,

i Lislanee in share premiam aceount

i Renerve Tor Issue of Bonus Shares

iv. Ciepernd/ Statutory Reserves as disclosed on the balance-shect

v Minority ierest {In case ol consolidation)

vi. Upbapproprinted / un remitted profits (net of accumulated losses, if any)
vii L ess rogulatory adjustments applicable of CET1 as specified in Basei 11

Adiebitional Tier | Crpital (AT}
Additional Tier capital shafl consist of the following iters:

i tstinments issued by banks that meel the qualifying criteria for AT1 as specified in Basel 111
i Share promiwn zesulting from the issuance of AT instruments.

iii Minanity interest i.e. ATV issued by consolidated parties to third pasties.

iv. Less repabtory adjustments applicable en AT as specified in Basel i

‘Cier 2 Cupital (Gone Concern Capital or Supplententary Capital)
Fhe Tiee 2 capital (or gone concern capital) shall include the following elements:

i fabordinated debt/instruments (meeting eligibility criteriz as specified in Basel 111)

i, Bhare pramivin resulling from the issue of instruments included in Fier 2.

it binority Interest i.e. Tier -2 issued by consolidated subsidiaries to third partied as specified in Basel 11T
iv. evaluption reserves (net of deficits, if any)

v. Ciencral provisions or general Reserves for loan losses

vi. Foreign Fxchange Translation Rescrves

Vi Uindiselosed Reseyves

viii. Loss regulatory adjustments applicable on Vier -2 capital as specified in Basel 111




A

1,

L1,
[N
(R
1+,
15,
1,

174,

i

et el -

ALIN
i,

il

| /)’i/

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1): Instruments & Reserves

Fully Paid-up Capilal / Capital deposited with SBP

Advunee against issuc of capital

Reserve Tor issue o Benus Shares

General £ Stalatory Reserves (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)

Usninppropriated 7 unreritted profits - net of accumulated losses, if any (losscs as negative number)

Minority Tuterests arising from CET] capitafl jnslruments issued to third party by consolidated company subsidiaries
{lrom "Consolidation sheet™}

CET § hefore Regulalory Adjustments

Comman Eguity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1): Regulatory Adjustments

Gioodwill {net ol any associated deferred wmx lability)

All other inlangibles (nel of any associated deferred tax liability)

Shorttall in provisions required against classified asscts (without considering any tax impact)

Delerved tax assets (net of any associaled deferred tax lability) excluding DTAs arising from temporary differences
sueh as allowanee Jor credit losses

Diefined benefit pension fund assels (nel of any associated delerred tax liability)

Reciprocad eross holdings in CHTL capital instruments of banking, financial, and insurance cntities

Cash fow hedpe reserve

livwestiment i oswn shares 7 CETL instruments

Any incrense inequity capital resulting from a securilization transactien

Crpdrat shorthadl ol repalated subsidiaries

e lieit oo aceount of revaluation (rom Company's holdings of property / AFS

mants 0 (e capitad instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are ouiside the scope of
latory eonzolidution, where the company does not own more than 10% of the issued share capilal (amount above
theeshoid)

nificunt ioveatiments in Lhe eapital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities thal are outside
e of reputntory conselidation (umount above 10% threshold)

e leered Tox Assels ansing from temparaty differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Arnsiend exceeding 15% threshobd {significant Investments and DTA)

Blationnl speeilic regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capitai

tvestinent in ‘i i other banks exeeeding the preeribed limit

Any other deduction specified by SBP

Adjistment o CETT 1o cover shortfall in AT1 adjustments

Totn] Repulatory Adjusment applied to CET 1

Comenen Lgwity Tier 1 a

Additionsd Fier | (AT 13 Capital
Owbifyvinge Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any relaled share premium
ol which: Classilied us cquity
ol which: Classilied as liabilitics
Additional Tiee- 1 capital instruments issued by consclidated subsidiaries and held by third parties {(amount allewed
i prenp AT - Trem "Consolidation sheet")
A helTore epubitory Adjustments

Adibitionn]l Tier | (AT 1} Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

et in wiad funds exceeding the precrived limit (SBP Specific Adjustment)

mend inavwn AT capital instruments

iocipricnl eruss holdings in Additional Tier | eapital instruments of banking, financial, and insurance entities

Jovestirents i the capital instruments ol banking, linancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulidory consolidation, where the company does nol own more than 10% of the issued shate capilal (amount above
L% thresholid)

Hipmilicant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entilies lhal are cutside
this seope ol repulntory consolidation

I'artion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Base! [1I treatment which,
during transitional perfod, remain subject to deduction from tier-1 capital

Adinsinent to AT to cover shortfall in 72 adjustments

Titnl of Regubntory Adjustmient applied to AT1 capital

Adbditional Tier | Capital recognized for Capital Adeguacy €] b
Tier | Cupitul (CET { + Admissible AT 1)

Fler 3 Cnpitd

Curlilying {Base! N8 Tier 2 capital instruments

Capitad instruments subject 1o phase out from tier 2

T apital inslruments issued to third party by conselidated subsidiarics (amount allowed in group tier 2 }
Licneral Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets

Hevalostion Reserves (delicit) / surplus on AFS
12 belore reguladory adjustments

2015

2014
[Restated

-—- {Rupees in “400) --—---

3,001,000 3,001,000
218,143 215,143
713,662 713,662

{4,789,697) (2.881.315)
(856,892} 1,051,490
1,159 575
17,732 -
18,891 VTS
TR T 0s0,90 5

-]

(¢ = n+b)

(875.783) 1,050,015
91,792 96,204
102,131 125,959
193,923 222,163
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Tier 2 {1'2) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

Portion of deduetion applied 50:30 to core capitzl and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel 111 treatment which,
duving teansinional period, remain subject 1o deduction from ticr-2 capital

Reciprocil cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments

Iyvestment in own Tier 2 capilal insirument

Investments in e capilal instruments of barking, linancial and insurance entities that are culside the scope of
repolatory consolidation, where the company does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above
10% theeshold)

Signilicant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities thal are outside
the seope of regulatory consolidation

Amount of Repulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital

Tier 2 Capital {T2)

Tigr 2 Capital {12} recopnized for capital adequacy

Exeess Additional Tier | Capital recognized in Tier 2 Capital

Total Tier 2 Capital admissille for Capital Adequaey ()

TOTAL CAPITAL (1L + admissible T2}
Total Rislc Weighted Asscts

Tatal Credit Risk Weighted Assets
Total Murket Risk Weighled Assets
Total Cpecationnt Risk Weighted Assets

Chpitnl Adeguacy Batios (in percentage of Risk Weighted Assets)

LT W totant RWA
Tier- ] copital o lotal RAWA
Tkl capitad 10 WA

ity (Maximn/ NMiinima)

CLIT G toia) HWA

ALY o alnl WA

Trer ) eapital o toial RWA
Fiied enpital 1o total RWA
Tatd gopital (0 RWA
Cagnital Conservanion Buller
Total capital plus CCB

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RECONCILIATION

STEM

ASSETS

Cashuand balanecs with treasury banks
Faianees with other banks

Lendings to financial institulions
[uvestments - net

Addvances - net

Operating fixed asscts

Daelerred tax asset

Olher assets

EIABILITIES

3iils puyable

Doreewings

[eposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assels subject o finanee lease
Dxeferred tax Habilities

Onthier Jinbitities

NET ASSETS
REPFRESENTED BY
Shire capial

[Hanerves
Aveumilnted loss

Aslvante against issue of capital
(Lefieit) £ sucplus on revaluation of assets

(e =c+d)

{afi)
(c/i)
{e/i)

2015

2014
Restated

- (Rupees in “000) ——-

193,923 222,163
193,923 122,163
(681,800 1,273,072
| 10,689,382f | 11,106,134]
7,343,371 7,696,284
589,013 806,614
2,756,998 2,603,236
-8.19% 9.46%
-B.19% 9.46%
-6.38% 11.46%
6.00% 5.50%
1.50% 1.50%
7.50% 7.00%
2.50% 3.00%
10.00%, 10.00%
0.25% -
10.25% 10.00%
Dalance Sheet
as in the Under
pulHisteed Repulutory
financial seope
statements
82,376 82,370
107,638 107,638
7,729,999 7,729,999
11,512,906 11,312,906
373,236 373,236
£76,256 876,294
20,682,451 20682451
11,242,300 11,242,300
10,194,912 10,194.912
21437231 21,437,212
(754,7G5) (754,761)
3,001,000 3,001,000
713,662 713,662
(4,789,697) {4,789,697)
(1,075,035) {1075G3%)
218,143 218,193
102,131 102,131
(754,761) (754,761




STER 2

ASSETS

Cushe il badanees with lreasury banks

Bafances with other binks

ings o financisl institutions

shments - nel

af which: Now significant eapital investment in capitaf of other financial institution exceeding
10% threshhald

ol which: Non signilicant capital investment in financial sector entities exceeding regulatory
thireshheld

ol which: Mutual Fund exceeding regulatory threshhold

of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument

ol wiich: othery

Adwvinices
ol which: Shartfadl in provision / excess of EL amount over eligible provision under IRB
al whicly General provision reflected in Tier 2 Capital

.|ll|;1I e nssels
’ :h _l}j!u}mi!:lc‘.:;

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABOLITIES
iz papalile
g
1f pther wecaungs

Flerioy

NI ANKEES

o

il

i
al which smomt eligible for CET )
ol which mnount elipible for AT

i aniannd cligible for CRT | |
Colwhieh amount eligible tor Tier 2

Avcimmtinted loss

Minariiy luteresl

. “of which: amount cligible for CET |
af which: nmount cligible for AT |
ol which: nmount eligible for Tier 2

Salviiney npainst issue of capital

(ehcin / surplug on revaluation of assets
©of which Revaluation reserve on property
of which: worealized Gain/ Loss on AI'S
¢ of Delicil on revaluation (deduction from CETH

e

HTEE )

oo Boity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1); Instruments & Reserves

Fidly Prnil-up Capitad/ Capital deposited with SBP

Hiliuiee in Shioe Fremium Account

fegerve for jssoe af Bonus Shares

Chatisinb Stalutory Rueserves (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)

Chtindlagses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge

{lsppraprintedfanremitted profits - net of accumulated losses, if any (losses as negative number)

Rinmiily Tilg asising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third party by conselidated bank subsidiaries
fiin "Consolidation sheet™)

T 1 igfare Nepulntory Adjustments

Gl

Balance Sheet
asin the Under
published regulatory Reference
financial scope
statenicnts
82,376 82,376
107,638 107,638
7,729,999 7,729,999
- - a
- - I»
. - ¢
- - i
- - G
11,512,506 11,512,906
91,792 91,792 i
373,236 373,236
[ Liso | | 1,i59 ] h
876,296 876,296
20,682,451 20,682,451
11,242 300 11,242,300
10,194,912 10,194,912
21,437,212 21,437,212
(754,761) {754,761
3,001,000 3,001,000
[ 3,001,000 3,001,000 i
- - i
713,662 713,662
1 713,662 713,662 k
- - 1
(4,789,657} (4,789,607) w
- - n
- - [
- R D
218,143 218,143
102,13} 102,131
- - g
102,131 102,131 r
- s
(754,701) (754,761)

Componcnt of

Source based on

regulatory reference
capitai reported number from
by Company Step 2
3,001,000 i
218,143
713,662 k
{4,789,697; m
(856,892}




Connnen Equity Tier | Capital {CET 1): Regulatory Adjustments

Ciaodwill (net ol any associnted defered tax liability)

A other intangibles (et of any assoeialed defered tax liability)

Shortlall in provisions required against classified assets (without considering any tax impact)

Delerred tax nssets (el of any associated deferred tax liability) exeluding DTAs arising from temporary differences
sueh as allowanee for credit losses

Irelined benehl pensien fund assels (net of any associated deferred tax lability)

lteciprogal cross holdings in CETL capital instruments of banking, financial, and insurance entities

Cash Mow hedpe reserve

Investment in own shates/ CETH instruments

Any incroase in equity capital resulting from a securitization transaction

Cupitad shordall of regutated subsidiaries

Dicticit on aceount of revaluation from Cempany's holdings of property/ AI'S

Investments in e capital instruments of banking, financial and insvrance entities that are outside the scope of
repulatory consolidation, wheee the company does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above
YO treshinld}

Sipmificant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entilies that are outside
e seapn of regalatory cansolidation {ameunt above 10% threshold)

infiored Tax Asscls arising from lemporary differences (amount above 10% Ibreshold, nel of related (ax tability)

AN Y ing, L5% threshold (significant Investments and DTA)
fie; repslatory adjustments apptied 1o CETI capital
s in TICs of eiher banks exceeding the preeribed limit

Ay slber deduciion specificd by SBP

Addestimeni o CET G cover shortfall in ATT adjustments

Fotnl Hegulitery Adjusment applicd to CET §

ationel

Cingn Equity Tier |

Alsbitionad 'Cier (AT 1y Capital
Chrdifyving Additionat Tier-1 instraments plus any related share premivm
of which: Classified ns equity
of which: Classilicd as linbilitics
Additicenal Tiee-1 capital instruments issued by censclidated subsidiarics and held by third parties (amount allewed in group AT - from
"Consolidation sheet™)
AT Lelere Regulstory Adjustments

Additional Fier 1 (AT 1) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

Uivestnent in mutual lunds excecding the precribed limit (SBP Specific Adjustment)

tevestmant in ewn AT capital instruments

fteciprocnl cross holdings in Additional Tier { capital instruments of banking, financial, and insurance enlitics

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance culities that are outside Lhe scope of
rupdatary consolidation, where the company docs not own more than 10% of the issued share capital {nmount above
1004 chreshald}

Skenificant investments in the capital instruments issucd by banking, financial and insurance enlities that are outside
1l seepe of repulalory consolidation

Partion al deduction applicd 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel 11 treatment which,
dueing tasitianal period, remain subject to deduction from ties-1 capital

Adjustient to AT o cover shortfall in T2 adjustments

Totnf of Regulatory Adjustreent applied to AT] capital

Additionnl Tier 1 Capital vecognized for Capital Adequacy b

Ties 1 Copitnt (CET E+ Admissible AT 1) {c=a+h)

Tiee 2 Capital
abifving (Hascl 1) Tier 2 capital instruments
(rikal instruments subject to phase out from tier 2
T eapital instrunents issued ro third party by consolidaled subsidiaries {amount allowed in group tier 2}
al Pravisions or gencral reserves for loan losses-up to maximum ef 1.25% ef Credit Risk Weighled Assets

sviluition Reserves (deficit) / sueplus on AFS
3 helore vepuhtory ndjustinents

iz

Component of
regalatory
enpital reported
by Compaoy

Compencnt of | |Source based on
regulatory referenee
eapital reported number from
by Company Step 2

1,159 I

- r

- i

- 5
17,732
18,891

- i

Sonzee basedl on
refereney
wetmber from
Step 2

!875,783!

91,752

102,131

193,923




Component of | |Source based on
regulatory reference
capitul reported number from
by Company Step 2

Tier 3 (F2) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment o

Pottion of daduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capilal besed on pre-Basel I treatment which,

during trmsitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital -

Reciproal eross holdings in Tier 2 instruments -

Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument -

lnvisstments in the capital instruments of banking, finuacial and insurance entties that are outside Lhe scope of

repulatary consolidatien, where the company does not own more than 10% of the issued share capitel (amount above

10% threshokD) -

Hignificant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance enlitics that are outside

the seepe of repulalory consoflidation -
Amount of Regulatory Adjustuent applied to T2 capital -
Tivr 2 Capital (T2)
Tier 2 Capital (12) recognized for capilal adequacy 193,923

ixess Additional 'Fier 1 Capital recognized in Tier 2 Capital -
Catal Tier 2 Capital admissibbe for Capital Adequacy d 193,923

TOVAL CAPTUATL {11 -+ admissible T2) {e=chd)

(081,860)

NN Cnpitd Adenuacy
Il vk weiphied asstes (o capital ratio , caleulaied in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's guidelines on Capital Adequacy was as follows:

Capital Requircment

Risk Weighted Asscets

1015 2014 2015 2014
Restated Restated
—_ e {Rupecs in "000} -—— -
Crethit Ttisk
<O Ihhnsee Shoeast
Carparate Portfolio - 636 - 0.560
Bk s/ 2,153 43,018 21,528 AS0L N2
Pubibic Scator Fntities - - -
Sovereign / Cash & Cash Equivatent - - - -
Foans secured sygainst zesidential property 345,000 250,092 3,450,597 2500916
ILepul ’ - - . )
st due Loans 182,067 119,005 1,820,668 3180 0k
: Crperating Fixed Assct 37,208 40,602 372,007 At 024
Ciher Assets 86,043 49,5487 860,43 A4 872
ndisted equity ipvestments {other than that deducted from capital) held in the company baok 3,990 - 39,897
bisted Uguity investments and regulatory capital instruments issucd by other banks (other than
thuse sledueted (rom capital) held in the company book - - - ]
656,521 704,961 6,565,198 7048 601
- < CHE inlance Sheet
E ton darket related cxposures 77,817 064,668 778,173 06,678
&4 Votud Cralit Risk 734,338 769,628 7,343,371 7,696,284
Ay liet Rsi
E Toterest Mate Risk 58,901 40,661 589,013 806,614
Giperention Risl 275,700 260,324 2,756,998 2,603,236
1,068,939 1,410,613 10,689,382 11,106,134
2018 2014
—-- (Rupecs in *000) -—-
Cipitnl Adequicy Ratio
Toval eligible regulatory capital held [ (651,860) 1,273,077
Totul sk Weighled Assets i 10,689,382 11,106,134
Cortel Adeguacy Ratio (c/i) -6.38% 11.46%
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Institutions are exposed to various risks in pursuit of their business objectives. The nature and
complexily of these risks has rapidly changed over time. The failure to adequately manage these risks not only
results in business losses but also places hurdles in achieving strategic objectives. Consequently, a solid and
vigorous risk management framework in the organization is required.

The Company's risk Management Policy is in line with the Risk Management Guidelines of State Bank of
Pakistan and Basel III Accord. The Risk Management Policy is approved by the Board of Directors.

The risk management policies and procedures cover all activities of the Company including credit evaluation,
treasury and investment operations. The basic principles employed in formulation of the above policies and
procedures involves identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks to ensure that:

The Company's risk exposure is within the limits established by the Board of Directors.
Risk taking decisions are in line with the business strategy and objectives of the Company.
The expected payotfs compensate the risks taken by the company.

Risk profile of the Company

The key risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk.

Risk Structures and

Organizational framework for Risk Management includes the following:

The Board of Directors is responsible for overall supervision of the risk management process. A Board Risk
Management Committee has been formed to regularly review risk related activities of the organization. The
Board Risk Management Committee is responsible to establish and implement risk management framework of
the Company. Individual risks are reviewed and controlled by various committees at management level like
Assets and Liabilities Committee and Credit Committee,

fisk Management Department is responsible for coordinating and implementing all the risk management
setivities of the Company. It ensure that risks remain within the boundaries as defined by the Board, comply
with Lhe risk parameters and prudential limits and work out remedial measures. The core function is to identity,

measure, monitor and report key risks to which company may be exposed. It works in close coordination with all
the functions and business units that are involved in risk taking.

Risk Management department undertakes the following activities on regular basis utilizing the overall risk
[ramework:

Formulate policies and guidelines for managing all risk categories.

Develop systems and procedures. These systems and procedures should be capable of accurate
measurement of the risks to identify deviation from approved risk parameters.

Facilitate introduction and implementation of prudent practices for risk management.

- Tacilitate management in business decisions by providing analytical risk reviews.

- Communicate and liaise with other functions and business units in carrying out risk reviews, analysis and
mitigation activities.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value, either when due
or at any time thereafter. This risk arises from the potential that a customer or counterparty's willingness to meet

Housing Finance is the core function of the Company and credit risk is the major risk faced by the Company.
Credit risk is incurred mainly in the following two areas of its operations; -

In its credit operations, where it provides housing finance to retail or wholesale clients; and

- In treasury operations where credit risk is incurred with counterparties in its investments in financial markets and
instruments.

Overall credit risk is monitored by Credit Committee at Head Office, which reviews and recommends
inprovements in credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior. To further strengthen credit risk management
and credit setup, proper delegation of credit decisions at committee level with appropriate approving limits has
Leen made.

Following measures have been applied to govern credit policy of the Company: -
tending process and decision is based on a full appreciation of the risks inherent in the transaction,

Management monitors credit portfolio through MIS reports.

- Stress testing for individual credits and the overall credit portfolio under adverse changes in the
conditions / environment in which the borrowers operate.

- The Company has instituted an effective systemn for monitoring servicing of its performing credit portfolio and
collection of non performing portfolio.

- The Company creates loan loss provisions against non-performing advances in accordance with Prudential
Regulations issued by SBP.

Credit Risk Mitigation

[l is the Company's policy to reduce or mitigate credit risk on credit facilities or exposures, by securing thesc
with collaterals. To correctly assess the extent to which the coliateral mitigates the credit risk the collateral must
be valued according to a specified valuation method, documented and monitored.

Iny this regard following steps have been taken: -

- Outsourcing of property title verification.
- Quisourcing of borrower income verification.
- Qutsourcing of property valuation.

Credit Risk is also mitigated through a set up of sub credit committee at Zonal and Regional level for credit
approvals depending upon the level of risk assumed., Overall credit risk is monitored by central credit
committee which reviews and recommends improvements in credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior.

To strengthen credit risk management and to fulfill SBP requirements, the company is working to develop and
implement internal credit risk rating system for its entire credit portfolio.

il
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Collateral & Security

Collateral is an important mitigate of credit risk. All the residential mortgages are collateralized. Valuation of
the cotlateral is taken within agreed parameters. The legal mechanism by which collaterals is pledged and the
company's procedures ensure that the company has clear rights over the collaterals and may liquidate, retain or
take legal possession of it in a timely manner in the event of default.

Insurance Cover

- Every borrower and guarantor is insured for life and disability for repayment of the balance amount of the loans.

- Lvery property taken as collateral is insured.
Credit Concentration Risk
Coneentration of credit risk is the risk related to the degree of diversification in the credit portfolio, i.e. the risk

inherent in doing business with large customers or not being equally exposed across borrower types and
peopraphical regions, The concentration risk can arise in loan book as well as investment book.

Sepmental information

Segmental Information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical distribution of
Advances, Deposits, Contingencies and Commitments.

ﬂf!z/ﬁ—-v




L2 Segments by class of business

Housing finance

ldividuals
Others

Individuals
Others

3122 Sepment by sector

Housing finance

Public / Government
Private

Public / Government
Private

2015
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupces Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent

in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in '000 %
14,716,790 99.76 - - 417,492 53.65
35,407 0.24 - - 360,681 46.35
14,752,197 100.00 - - 778,173 100.00

2014 - Restated

Contingencies and

Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitmenis
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Pereent
in "000 % in '000 Yo in '000 Yo

12,843,057 99.72 - - 228,105 38.59
35,640 0.28 - - 362,993 61.41
12,878,697 100 - - 591,098 100.00
2015
Contingencies and

Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupces Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in ‘000 Yo

26,777 0.18 - - 200,000 2570
14,725,420 99.82 - - 578,173 74.30
14,752,197 100 - - 778,173 166

2014 - Restated

Contingencices and

Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupces Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in "000 Yo

27,010 0.21 - - 200,000 28.79
12,851,687 99.79 - - 391,098 71.2]
12,878,697 100 - - 591,098 100




MLLLY Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2015 2014
Restated
Classified Specific Classified Specilic
Advances Provisions Advances Provisions
Held Heid

-------------------- (Rupees in “000) ~-r~--mmmommmmoeee

Individuals 4,873,809 3,053,138 4,789,357 2,516,384
Others 35,406 35,406 35,640 35,640

4,909,215 3,088,544 4,824,997 2,552,024

S 0240 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector

2015 2014
Restated
Classified Specific Classified Specific
Advances Provisions Advances Provisions
Hcld Held

-------------------- {Rupees in ‘Q00) ——--—av e cmemmemn

ublic/ Government 26,777 26,777 27,010 27,010
Prrivate 4,882,439 3,001,767 4,797 987 2,525,044
4,909,216 3,088,544 4,824 997 2,552 024

L.1.2.5  Geographical segment analysis

Profit / (loss)
before Total assets Net assets Contingencics and
taxation employed employed commitments
(Rupees in *000)

2085

Pakistan {728,705) 20,682,451 {754,761) 778,173
2014 - Restated

Pakislan 155,950 20,583,542 1,177,449 591,098
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38. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue onU 6 MAR 2017 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

39. GENERAL

39.1 Figures have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand rupees except stated otherwise.

39.2 Captions as prescribed in BSD circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan in

respect of which no amounts are outstanding have not been reproduced in these financial statements except for in
the balance sheet and the profit and loss account.

MANAGING DIRECTOR IRECTO 1&lECT 6 DIREC TOR

o




